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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Shareholders and Board of Directors
Materialise NV
Leuveu, Belgium

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompauying consolidated statenrents of financial position of Matelialise NV (the "Company") and subsidiaries
as of December3l,20l8,2017 and2016, the related consolidatedinconre statelnents, statements of comprehensive income, changes in
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended Decernber 3 I , 201 8, and the related notes (collectively referred to
as the "consolidated financial statements"). Irr our opinion, the consolidated financial statenrents pleserlt fairly, in all nrater-ial t'espects,

the financial position of the Corlpany and subsidiaries at Decerrrber 31,2018,2017 and20l6, and the results oitheir opelations and

their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended Decernber 31, 2018, in confornrity with International Financial
Reporting Standalds as issued by the International Accounting Standards Boards.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements ale the lesponsibility of the Courpany's management. Onr responsibility is to express an

opinion on the Company's consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 'We are a public accounting fìmr legisteled with the
Public Company Accounting Ovelsight Boald (United States) ("PCAOB") and are required to be independent with lespect to the
Company in accotdance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and legulations of the Secutities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted onr audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perfornr the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whethel the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to enor'
or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perforrl, an audit of its internal control over financial reporling.
As palt of our audits we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over fìnancial reporting but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over hnancial repolting. Accordingly, rve express no such
oplnlon.

Our audits included perfomring procedules to assess the tisks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether'
due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to tlrose risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basl's,

evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated hnancial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements. Vy'e believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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I 17:43 750783 FIN 3 5*

age
NYM

F-3



ilt ilililililIIililil ilr llilllllil]il]t
MATERIALISE NV D onnell Financial EGV 901 750783 4

HT[/ ESS OC

Consolidated income statements

For the year ended December 31,

share dafa Notes 2018 201 7* 201 ó

Cost of sales 22.2 (82,299) (62,952) (46,706)

Research and development expenses 22.3 (22,416) (19,959) (17,682)

General and administrative expenses 22.5 (32,3 10) (24,816) (20,041)

*i*ïl:¡tii;*i l ffi
5,764 392 107

Financial income 22.9 3,627

Profit (loss) before taxes 3,452 (1,595) (1,309)

The owners of the parent 3,027 (2,117) (3,019)

Earnings per share attributable to the owners of the parent
iT-T+,ðQ,ü6{i*$,ffiffi

Diluted 23 0.06 (0.04) (0.06)

The year 2017 has been restated to reflect certain teclassification adjustments and the final accounting ofthe ACTech business
combination. See Note 2 for more information

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

F-4
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For the ended December 3

Notes

Other loss
({)it: 'rlil,iii,'lif¡)i;rrt,,,f:, lrr¡, rii:trr li l: iijtr¡rr,rr)ii'ii'orri tt) t/\ (iiit)li I ,il.r jì

Other net of taxes 4 691

Total lncome ath'ibutable to:

Non-controlling interest

ï May be reclassihed subsequently to profit & loss
* The year 2017 has been restated to reflect the final accounting of the ACTech business combination. See Note 2 for more

information.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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As ofDecember 31,

Notes 2018 2017* 201ó

RM zO-F- IFRS XBRt

Consolidated statements of financial position

in 000€

NYM OC

Non-current assets

assets 6 26,326 28,600 9,76s

Investments in olnt ventures

Other non-current assets l0 7,237 3,667 2,154

Current assets

Trade receivables 11 36,891 3 82 27

Cash and cash 12 115 175 5

Total assets 313,225 234,678 16l,920

The year 2017 have been restated to reflect the final accounting of the ACTech business combination. See Note 2 for more
information.

The accompanying notes form an integral paft of these consolidated fìnancial statements.

F-6
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Consolidated statements of financial position

As ofDecember 31,

in 000€ Notes 2018 2017 * 2016

ffi
Share

6*

NYM

(1,850) (r,803) (1,1 12)

Total equity 135,989 77,054 79,033

Loans & 788 28

637 79

s87 3

39 79

768 3Defened income

Total non-current liabilities 104,121 94,875 35,053

Loans & 15 13,598 12,7 69 5,539

Tax

Other cunent liabilities t9 I

Total equity and liabilities 313,225 234,678 161,920

* The yeat 2017 have been restated to reflect the final accounting of the ACTech business combination. See Note 2 for more
information.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-7

132 926



ilt illlililllIIllllll llr il
MATERIALISE NV

IFRS XBRL

Consolidated statcments of changcs in equity

in 000€

At January I,20LB
IFRS 15-inrpact on opening reserves+*
Adjusted equify At January 1,2018
Net profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income (ìoss)

Capital increase in cash

Capital increase tluough exelcise of wanants
Costs from capital increase
Equity-settled share-based payl.rlent expense

At December 31, 2018

in 000€

At January L,2017
Net loss fol the year*
Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive Ioss'(-

Equity-settled share-based payment expense
At December 31,2017*

in 000€

At January 1,2016
Net loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive loss
Equity-settled share-based payment expense

At December 31, 2016

V

NYM

I 01:15 EST
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Notes

2

S hare
prcmrurn

79,839

2,729 79,839

312

Share
capi trl
2,729

Consolida ted
reserves

(3,71 I )
(r,r 73)
(4,884)
3,027

3,027

Other
comprc-
hcnsive

I oss

(1,803)

(l,803)

(47)
(47)

Total

Total

79,033
(2,117)

(6e1)
(2,808)

829
71,054

Non-
controllin g

in terest
Totâl
equ ity

77,054
(1,173)
75,881

3,027
(47)

2,980
59,887

602
(4,003)

612
135,989

Total
equity

79,033
(2,117)

(6el)
(2,808)

829
77,054

71,054
(r,r73)
75,881

3,027
(41)

2,990
59,887

602
(4,003)

642
135,989

t3
l3
13

t4

59,575
593

(4,003)
633

136,637

9

Tlre Gloup has initially applied IFRS l5 using the cumulative effect metltod. Under this nrethod, the cotrtparative intbrrlation is

not restated. See Note 2 for mole infomration.

Attributable to the orvners of the

Other
compre-

Share Co¡rsolidatcd her¡sive

3,050

Share
Notes clpital Premium

2,729 79,019

820
2,729 79,839

9

(1.848)

rescrves

-o,eo¡l

(2,117)

(2,1t7)
9

(3,71 1)

(1,850)

loss

-(u1Ð

Non-
cotr trolling

in terest

Non-
con trolling

interest

(6el)
(6e1)

14
(1,803)

t< The year 2017 has been lestated to reflect the final accounting of the ACTech business combination. See Note 2 lor more

information.

Attributâble to the orYncrs of thc Darcnts

Share Sharr

Other
compre-
hensive
tnconte

0oss)

72r

(r,833)
(1,833)

(1,1 12)

Notcs Total

82"955
(3,0 r e)
(r,833)
(4,852)

930
19,033

78,098
capital

2,729

prcmrum
Consolidated

reselYes
Total
equity

82,955
(3,0 r 9)
(l,833)
(4,852)

930
79,033

t4
2,729

921
79,019

1,407
(3,0re)

(3,019)
9

(1,603)

The accompanying notes form an integral part ofthese consolidated fìnancial statements

F_8
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For the year ended
December 31,

Notes 2018 2017* 2016

FORM zO-F- IFRS XBRL

Consolidated cash flow statements

in 000€

Share-based

3,027 (2,117) (3,0r9)

7 12,223 8,7s4 6,420

14 I 3 977

Movement in 561

Financial income t72\

cul'rellcles

Income taxes and defetred taxes 22.10 425 522 I 't12

Other 87 (22) (78)

Increase in trade receivables and other receivables (3,156) (4,973\ (6,465\

Increase in trade and other 343 9,086

Net cash flow from operating activities 28,320 9'951

The year 2017 has been restated to reflect the final accounting of the ACTech business combination. See Note 2 for more

infonnation.

The accompanying notes form an integral part ofthese consolidated financial statements.

F-9
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For the year ended December 3 I ,

Notes 20f 8 2017* 2016

FORM 2O-F- IFRS

Consolidated cash floìry statements

in 000€

Proceecls from the sale of

Purchase of property, plant & equrpment 7 (18,270) (27,733) (12,237)

and 281 221 1

Investments in olnt-ventures

Interest received 363 281 ll

Finan activities

ofloans &

tncrease tn 13 60,489

Interest paid (1,733) (955) (630)

il;f
Net cash flow from activities

Cash and cash of the 12 43 '175 55 912 726

Cash and cash eqnivalents at end of the year 12 115,506 43,175 55,912

* The year 2017 has been restated to reflect the final accounting of the ACTech business combination. See Note 2 fol mole
information.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F_10
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Notes to the consolidated fìnancial statements

1 Corporateinformation

Materialise NV is a limited liability corÌlpany with its tegistered office at Technologielaan 15, 3001 Leuven, Belgium. The consolidated
financial statements conrprise Materialise NV (the "Company" or "Parent") and its subsidialies (collectively, the "Gloup"). See Note 28
for a list of subsidiaries of the Company.

The Gloup is a leading provider of additive manufactuling (AM) sofnvare and of sophisticated 3D printing selices. The products and

selices of the Group are organized in the three segments: Materialise Medical, Materialise Software and Materialise Manufacftu'ing.
The Gloup sells its products in Eulope, the Arnericas, Africa and Asia-Pacific.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 3 I , 201 8 were approved and authorized for issue on
Ãprrl 29, 2019 in accor-dance with a resolution of the Parent's Board of Directors.

F-l l
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2 Basis ofpreparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Gloup for the thlee years errded December'31,2018,2017 and20 l6 wele prepaled in
accoldance with the Intemational Financial Repolting Stanclalds (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) (collectively "IFRS") and with lntemational Financial Reporting Standalds (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
("EU-rFRS').

These consolidated financial stateurents lrave been plepar-ecl on a historical cost basis, except lor the assets and liabílities that have been
acquiled as patt of a busiuess combination which have been initially recognized at fail value and certain financial instruments which ale
measured at fair value.

The consolidated financial statenlents ate presented in thousands ofeuros (K€ or thousands of€) and all "culrency" values are rounded
to the nealest tlrousand (€000), except when othelwise indicated.

The plepalation of f,rnancial statenents in compliance with adopted IFRS lequires the use of certain critical accounting estir.nates. It also
lequiles Group nranagenrent to exercise judgnrent in applying the Gror-rp's accounting policies. The aleas where significant judgnrent
and estimates have been nrade in preparing the financial statenrents and their effect are disclosed in Note 3.

New stunclarcls, irtterpretcttions ancl anten¿lments ucloptecl b¡, t¡u çrou,

The Group has adopted the lollowing new and revised standalds and interpretations issued by the IASB and IFRIC that ale relevant to
its operations and elfective for accounting peliods beginning on January l, 201 8.

. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments,'

. IFRS 15 Revenueft'ont Contracts tvitlt Custonters

Several other anendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 201 8, but do not have an impact on the consolidated furancial
statements of the Gloup. The Group has not eally adopted any standards, interpretations or amendments that have been issued but are
not yet effective.

The application ofthe above relevant new standards and interpretations are explained below

IFRS 9 Finoncíal instruments

In July 2014,Lhe IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, or IFRS 9, that replaces IAS 39 Financial Inshuments:
Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 brings together all tluee aspects of the accounting for
financial instnrments project: classification and nreasurenrent, inrpairrnent and hedge accounting.

'We 
have adopted the new standard on the required effective date retrospectively, with an initial application date of Jannary l, 2018.

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group did not have a signilÌcant impact on its consolidated incorne statement, consolidated statement of cornprehensive inconre,
consolidated statement offinancial position or consolidated statement ofchanges in equity on applying the classihcation and
measurement requirelnents of IFRS 9. It continues to measure at fair value all fìnancial assets currently measured at fair value. The
equity shales in non-listed companies are intended to be held for the foreseeable ftihrre and are designated at fair value through OCI.

Cutrent and non-current trade receivables are held to collect contractual cash flows and are expected to give rise to cash flows
representing solely payrnents of principal and interest. The Group continues to measure these at amofüzed cost under IFRS 9.

Following the assessment of the contractual cash flow characteristics of its debt instruments, the Group concluded that the loans and
trade receivables can be classified at amoftized cost measnrement under IFRS 9.

(b) Impairment

IFRS 9 requires us to record expected credit losses on all ofour debt securities, loans and trade receivables, either on a 12-month or'
lifetime basis. 'We have applied the simplified approach and record lifetime expected losses on all trade receivables. The lifetime
expected losses are determined based on a provision matrix applied to each of the trade receivable aging buckets.

We have applied the tlansition exception as foreseen in IFRS 9 whereby the application of IFRS 9 "irnpainnent" does not need to be
recorded retroactively for all repolting peliods presented as we cannot avoid the use of hindsight. The application of IFRS 9 r'esulted in
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an additional expense/provision of K€340 in 201 8 on our consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of complehensive
income, consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated statenent of changes in equiry. The impact on the initial date of
application was not tnaterial.

We refer to Note 3 for the accounting policy on the financial assets and liabilities.

(c) Hedge acconnting

The Group does not apply hedge accounting for its derivatives. Derivatives are measured at fair value with changes through the
cousolidated income statement

F-12
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IFRS 1 5 Revenue Ji'ont Contracls with Custonrcrs

IFRS l5 Reveuue fi'om Contracts with Custornels, or IFRS | 5, was issued in May 2014 and establishes a five-step rnodel to account for
revenue alising from contlacts with customels. Undel IFRS i5, revenue is recognized at an anrount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transfening goods or sewices to a customer.

The standald plovides a single, principles based fìve-step model to be applied to all contracts with custorners as follows:

. Identi$ the contlact(s) with a customer';

. Identifli the performance obligations in the contlact;

. Determine the transaction price;

. Allocate the transaction price to the perfornrance obligations in the contract; and

. Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a pelfolnrance obligation.

The new revenue standard has snperseded all current revenlle recognition requirenrents under IFRS. We lrave adopted the new standard

on the lequired effective date of January 1, 2018 and have applied the modihed retrospective tr-ansition method to those contracts that
were not completed at Janr,rary 1, 201 8. 'When applying the modihed retrospective transition method, the cumulative effect of initially
applying IFRS l5 is recognized as an adjustment to the opening balance of our consolidated reseles in 2018.

The effect of adopting IFRS l5 is as follows

OEM sofm,'are license and distributiott agreentents

We regularly entel into software license and distribution agreements that may include the right for a partner to embed the Materialise
software in its own propefty software or rnachine, that is nrarketed and sold to end-customels. Typically, those contt'acts plovide a

license to use and market the software, training and one year of maintenance and support service. Those performance obligations are

"distinct". Certain contracts may also include development services. Those development serryices are in genelal also "distinct" selices
except in case the customer camot beneht fi'orn the license with readily available resources without the development seruices and the

development services significantly custonrize/modif' the existing license. In that case, those development services are combined with
the license and recognized over the temr ofthe license.

Those agreements may also provide for step-based volume discounts when certain sales targets are achieved and discounts when certain
developrnent revenue is achieved. Prior to adopting IFRS 15, volume discounts were recognized based on a reasonable estimate ofthe
volnrne discounts to be paid and deducted from revenue over the contract peliod (based on sales). Celtain otlrer discounts were
immediately deducted in full from revenue when they are expected to be nret. Under IFRS 15, the transaction price will include an

estimate of all the discounts payable under the contract period and will be subsequently allocated to the performance obligations. The
impact on revenue was however not material as of January I , 201 8.

Meclical partner license, supply 6¡1¡l 6l¡ttribution agreements

Medical partner license, supply and distribution agreements generally include a time-based license for online order management systenl
and surgical guide planning software, surgical guide developrnent services and 3D printing, training, set-up and on boarding sen¡ices

and rnaintenance services. The consideration for the license is in general included within the pdce for a surgical guide (whether or not
via an explicit royalty added to the price). The acconnting prior to adoption of IFRS l 5 is not significantly different than under IFRS 1 5,

except for:

. The license is in most cases not considered "distinct" and may be combined with the "surgical guide services and printing"
as the license as such may not have a signiflrcant benefit for the partner without other readily available resources;

. Certain agreements may include signihcant development serr/ices other than the standard set-up and on boarding selvices,
which significantly modifr7/customize the existing platform fol the purpose of tl.re parlner and are not considered "distinct"
and combined with the license; and

. Allocation of the transaction price over the "distinct" perfolmance obligations nray result in highet or lower tevenue
allocated to a performance obligation than the contractual pricing.

V

NYN/l

The impact on January I , 20 I 8 of the above differences o11 revenue is K€323 additional deferred revenue



ilr ililililil r r ililil illlffill.lilllll]lllll ll llllll ll lll

I 0t:16 EST 750783 13 4+

zO.F- IFRS XBRL NYNI HTM ESS

age 2

One contract with a non-cancellable contract period of l0 years had an up-front non-r'efundable fee for exclusivity for a total of
€2.25 nillion. Pr.ior to adopting IFRS 15, this fee has been fully recognized in previous years (from 2010 orwatds). Under IFRS 15, this

fee will be included in the transaction price and allocated to the "distinct" perfonnance obligations of the contract which are primarily

software license, surgical guides services and printing, maintenance, and development services. The impact of this difference on

Jannary l, 2018 is a higher deferred revenue of K€850 with a debit of the accumttlated dehcit for the same amount. This deferred

revenue will be recognized in revenue over the next three years'

F-13
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IFRS l5 is not expected to have signifìcant impacts on our othel leveuue strearrìs such as 3D ptint p|oducts and softwat'e licelrse and

related maintenance.

Intpact

Basedonourabovedetailedassessmelìt,thecunrr,rlativeelfectrecognizeclinretainedeartringsasof Januaty l,20lSisasfolloivs
(positive is a debit):

in 000€

Software
Medical
Manufacturing
Total catch-up adjustment

Januar¡' 1,2018

1,173

I,173

The follorvi¡g rable sullurarises the iurpact of adopting IFRS l5 on the Group's consolidated statenrent of financial position as at

Decetnber 31, 2018 and its consolidaterl inconre statenìent for the year then ended. There was no trlaterial irnpact on the Gronp's

staterîent of cash flows for theyea¡endedDecember 31,20 18, except on the irrpact of the deferled income on the line "netprofit of the

year" ftrlly cotnpensated by the irnpact on the line "Tnct'ease in tlade payables and other payables."

As ofDccember 3l 20r 8

Consolidatecl staterneut of finattcial positìon
in 000€

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Share capital
Share plemium
Consolidated reselves
Other comprehensive loss

Equity attributable to the owners of the parent
Total equify
Non-current liabilities

Loans & bortowings
Defened tax liabilities
Defetled income (corttract liability)
Other non-current liabil ities

Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Loans & borrowings
Trade payables
Tax payables
Deferred income (contract liability)
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities
Totat equity and liabilities

reportcd

Atnounts
ìvithou t
adoption
ot IFRS

l5

1 050

t36.637
(1,848)
( r ,8s0)

135,989
135,989

92,440
6,226
4,587

868
l04,l2l

13,598
18,667
2,313

23,195
15,342
73,115

313,225

IFRS 15
Cctch-up

adj ustnten t

t,173

1,173
1,173

(763)

(763)

(410)

(4r0)

IFRS I5
Adjustments
after initirl

adoption

(410)

(410)
(410)

410

410

3,050
t36,637

(1,08s)
( 1 ,8s0)

136,752
136,752

92,440
6,226
4,234

868
103,768

13,598
t8,667
2,313

22,785
t5,342
72,705

313,225

As
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ConsolirLa¡cd ¡nconrc statcrncnt

in 000€

Revemte
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Research and developnrent expenses

Sales and marketing expenses

General and administrative expenses

Net other opetating iucome
Operating profit
Financial expenses
Finarrcial inconre
Shale in loss ofjoint venture
Profit beforc taxes
Income taxes
Net profìt fbr the year
Net profìt attributable to:
The owners ofthe palent
Basic earnings per share
Diluted eamings per share

Restatenxents in tlrc reporting yeor 20 I 7

The Group has restated the reporting year 2017 for the following impacts:

9 17:55 EST N15
HTIV] ESS OC

For tlrc year ended
Decernber. 3l 201 8

Amounts
without
adoption

of IFRS I 5
As

reportcd

184,721
(82.299)
102,422
(22,416)
(46,303)
(32,310)

3,771

5,L64
(4,864)
3,627
(47s)

3,452
(42s)

3,027

Adjustments

(410)

(410)

(410)

(4r 0)

184,31 I

(82,299)
702,012
(22,4t6)
(46,303)
(32,3 10)

3,771
4,754

(4,864)
3,627

(41 s)
3,042
(425)

2,617

2,617
0.05
0.05

(410)

(4r0)3,027
0.06
0.06

Our audited fi¡ancial statemerìts fol the year er.rded Decen.rber 3 1, 201 7 appearing in out' Arnual Repot't on Form 20-F, as

fited wìth the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on April 30,2018 (the "FY 2017 Fornr 20-F'), included a

provisional accounting fol the ACTech business combination. The fair value atralysis with respect to the assets and liabilities
acquited was not yet finalized as of the reporting date.

As of October 4,2018, we corrpleted the fair valne analysis of the ACTech business combination, with corresponding

adjnstments to intangible assets, goodwill, properfy, plant and equiprnent, inventories and contracts in progress, other cnrrent

assets, investment grants and tax payables as if the accounting for the business cotnbination had been completed at

acquisition date. The impact has been accounted for as retlospective adjustments to oul consolidated statenent offinancial
position as of Decernber 31,2017 and onr consolidated income statelnent for the year ended Decernber 31,2017.

Fulthennore it includes an adjustment to the inventory valuation at ACTech as at December 3l, 2017 , with a total itnpact on

the consolidated resen¿es for the yeal amounted to K€(461).

We refer to Note 4 for a detailed discussion of the ACTech bltsiness cornbination.

The Gr.o¡p has voluntarily changed tlre presentation of the amortizatjon expense related to the intangible assets acquired

from a blsiness cornbination, except for the backlog, in the consolidated income statement. The related amortization expense

is in 201 8 presented in the line net other operating income in the consolidated income statement while pleviously this

expense was included in the lines cost ofsales, sales and marketing expenses and general and administrative expenses. The

intangible assets relate to acquired technology and acquired customer relationships. Management has changed the

presentation in order to better reflect the performance of the Group.
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The inrpact of the restatements on the consolidated statement olfìnancial position as of December 31,2017 andthe consolidated
incorne statement for the year ended Decenrber 31,2017 is as follows:

As of Dcccmber 3l 2017

As
previously
rcported As restâted

IFRS 3

ACTECH
Rcstatclnùnl ir.npâct orì stafcrÌlcnt of tìnancial position
in 000€

Assets
Non-current assets

Goodwill
Intangible assets

Property, plant & equipment
Tnvestrnents in joint venhn'es
Defer¡ed tax assets

Othel non-current assets

Total non-current assets
Current assets

lnventories and corltlacts in progress
Tlade leceivables
Other currerrt assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Share capital
Share premium
Consolidated reserves
Other comprehensive loss

Equity attributable to the owners of the parent
Total equify
Non-current liabilities

Loans & bonowings
Deferred tax li abilities
Deferred income
Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Loans & borrowings
Trade payables
Tax payables
Defened income
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilÍties
Total equity and liabilities

t1,594
35,582

9,212
43,17 5
99,563

237,539

tt,027
35,582

7,675
43,t7 5
97,459

234,678

18,447
28,646
86,881

3l
304

3,667
137,976

(8e5)
(46)
184

(461)
(461)

409
(t,272)

17,552
28,600
87,065

3l
304

3,667
137,219

2,729
79,839
(3,7tr)
( 1,803)
77,054
77,054

8l,788
7,415
3,768
1,904

94,875

(7s7)

(s67)

(l,537)

(2,104)
(2,861)

(46t)

) 1)A

79,839
(3,250)
( 1,803)
77,515
77,515

81,788
7,006
5,040
1,904

95,738

12,'769
15,670
3,560

18,79t
t3,496
64,296

237,539

(863)

(t,s37)

(1,53Ð
(2,861)

t2,769
t5,670
2,023

18,791
t3,496
62,749

234,678
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For the year ended December 31. Z017

As
Restatement ìmpact on income statement
in 000€

General and administrative

Cost of sales

(19,959) (19,9s9)

previously

25,484)

IFRS 3
ACTECH Reclassifìcation As restated

608

865 392

Financial income l0 J l0

Loss before taxes (1,122) (473) (1,595)

(1,6só) (461) (2,117)

The owners of the l1

The consolidated income statement of the year ended December 31,20t6 has not been restated. The total impact on the net other
operating income/(expenses) was immaterial for the year 2016 and therefore such amount has not been reclassified.

A * mark has been added next to the year 2017 in tables in the notes when the year has been impacted by the restatement.

F_17
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis for consolidation

The consolidated financial statenrents comprise the fìnancial statenrents ofthe Group and its subsidiaries

Entities are ftllly consolidated from the date of acquisition, which is the date when the Group obtains control, and continne to be
consolidated until the date when such control ceases. The flrnancial statements of the entities are prepated fol the same reporting peliod
as the parent company, using consistent accounting policies. All intra-Group balances, transactions, uruealized gains and losses
lesulting fronr intra-Group tlansactions and dividends ale tilly eliminated.

The Group attributes profit or loss and each component of other conrprehensive income to the owners of the parent company and to the
non-controlling interest based on present ownership interests, even if the results in the non-controlling interest have a negative balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of coutrol, is accounted foras an equity transaction. If the Group loses
control ovel the subsidiary, it will delecognize the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidialy, any noll-contlolling
interest and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit alising frorn the loss of control is recognized
in profit or loss. Tf the GLoup retains an interest in the previons subsidiary, then such interest is measnred at lair value at the date the
control is lost.

The propoltion allocated to the parent and non-controlling interests in preparing the consolidated financial statements is determined
based solely on present ownership interests.

There are no significant changes to the consolidated scope occurred in 20 1 8

Non-con trolling interests

The Group lras the choice, on a tlansaction by transaction basis, to initially recognize any non-controlling interest in the acquiree which
is a present ownelship interest and entitles its holders to a propoltionate share ofthe entity's net assets in the event ofliquidation at
either acquisition date fair value or', at the present ownership instruments' proportionate share in the recognized amounts of the
acquiree's identifiable net assets. Other cornponents ofnon-controlling interest snch as outstanding share options are generally
measured at fair value. The Group has not elected to take the option to use fail value in acquisitions courpleted to date and crlrrently
does not have non-controlling interest resr.rlting frotn business combtnatrons.

Foreign currency translation

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented in euros, which is also the parent company's functional currency. For each
entity, the Group determines the functional cuffency, and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
the flinctional cun-ency.

F i nan cial s t at em e nts of fo re i gn s ub s icl ia rie s

Foleign subsidiaries use the local cun'encies of the country where they operate. The statement of fìnancial position is translated into
euro at the closing rate on the reporting date and their income statement is translated at the average exchange rate at each month-end.
Differences resulting from the translation of the financial statemerrts of said subsidialies are recognized in othet comprehensive income
as "exchange differences on translation offoreign operations".

F-18
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Transactions denominated in t-oreign currencies are trauslated iuto euro at the exchange rate at the end of the plevious nronth-end.
Monetary items in the statement of financial position are tlanslated at the closing rate at each reporting date and the re levant translation
adjustments ale recognized in financial or operating r:esult depending on lts nature.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition nrethod at the acquisition date, which is the date at which the Group
obtains control over the entity. The cost ofan acquisition is nleasured as the amonnt ofthe consideration transferred to the seller,
measured at the acquisition date fail value, and the anrount of arry non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

The Group rreaslìres goodwill initially at cost at the acquisition date, being:

. the fail value ofthe consideration transfetred to the seller, plus

. the anlount of'any non-controlling interest in the acquilee, plus

. if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity irterest in the acquiree re-measured at
the acquisition date, less

. the fair value ofthe net identifiable assets acquiled and assurned liabilities

Goodwill is lecognized as an intangible asset with any impairment in carrying value being charged to the consolidated income
statenlent. Where the fairvalue of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceed the fairvalue of consideration paid, the
excess is credited in full to the consolidated income statement on acquisition date.

Acquisition costs incnrred are expensed and included in general and administrative expenses.

Any contingent considelation to be transfen'ed by the acqnirer will be recognizedaf fair valne at the acquisition date. Snbsequent
changes to the fait value of the contingent consideration, which is deemed to be an asset or liability, will be recognized eithel as a profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it should not be
re-rneasnred until it is finally settled within equity.

Acquisition ofnon-controlling interests are accounted for as an equity transaction.

Investments in joint ventures

The Group calries investment in a joint venture (RS Print NV). The Group's investnrents in its joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in the joint venture was initially lecognized at cost. The carrying amount of the
investment is adjusted to recognize changes in the Group's share of net assets of the joint venftrre since tl're acquisition date. Goodwill
lelating to the joint ventul'e is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested fol impainnent individually.

The income statement reflects the Gloup's share of the results of operations of the joint venh:re. Any change in other complehensive
income of the joint venture is presented as part of the Group's other comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been a change
recognized dir:ectly in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognizes its share of the change in the statement of changes in equiry
Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
interest in thejoint venhrre.

After application of the equity rnethod, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an impairment loss on its investment
in its joint venhrre. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the joint
venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount ofthe Group's interest in the joint venhrre (higher ofvalue in use and fair value less costs to sell), and then recognizes the loss
as 'Share of plofit or loss ofjoint venhrres' in the income statement.
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Property, plant & equipment

Property, plant and equiprnent is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment losses, if an1,. Such cost
includes borlowing costs directly attributable to construct¡on proiects ifthe asset necessarily takes a substantial period oftime to get
ready f'or its intended use, it is probable that they will result in future economic benefits to the group and the cost can be measnred
reliably. When significant palts of propelty, plant and equipnrent are required to be leplaced at intervals, the Group recognizes such
parts as individual assets u'ith specilìc usefil lives and depreciates thern accordingly. Likervise, when a majol inspection is performed.
its cost is recognized in the carrying amoLlnt of the ploperty, plant and eclLripment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are

satisfied. All other repair and maintenarrce costs are recognized in the inconre statement as incurred.

Depreciatiorr is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as f'ollor'r's:

Buildings:
Funriture, Plant & Equipmeut:
Propcrty lcascd Asscts:
Leased rnachines:

20-30 years

5-30 yeals
I 5-30 ycals o¡' lcasc Lcrm iI'shortcr
5-1 0 years ol lease term ifsholter

Land is not depreciated.

A leased asset is depreciated ovel the useful lifè of the asset. Hou'ever, if there is no reasonable certainly that the Group will obtain
ornelship by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estirnated useful life of the asset or the lease telm.

An iterr of property, plant and equipment and auy significant part initiall¡r lecognized is derecognized upon disposal ot'rvheu no futule
economic benefits are expected from its use ol disposal. Any gain or loss alising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
diffelence belr,veen the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the incorre staternent rvhen the asset is
derecognized.

The assets' residual values, useful lives and methods ofdepleciation are levierved at each tìnancial year-end and adjusted plospectively,
if appropriate.

Leases

The detenrination of whether an an'angement is, or contains. a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception date,
rvhether fulfilment ofthe arrangenrent is dependent on the use ofa specilìc asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset, even if that right is not explicitly specifìed in an art'angement

Finance leases which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are

capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased item or, if lower', at the present value of the minirnum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned betu'een finance chalges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Finance charges ale recognized as fìnancial experlses in the consolidated income statement.

Where substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ou'nership are nottranstèrred to the Group (an "opelating lease"), the total
lentals payable under the lease are charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
aggregate benetit ofllease incentives is recognized as a t'eduction ofthe lental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Borrowing costs

Bon'ora,ing costs directly attlibutable to the acquisition, construction or production ofa qualified asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period oftime to prepare for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part ofthe cost ofthe respective assets. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur'. Borror,ving costs consist ofinterest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the bollou'ing of funds.
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Research and development

Research and developrnent includes the costs incurred by activities related to the development ofsoftuare solutions (neu'products.

updates and enhancenrents). guides and othel'products.

Development activities irrvolve the application of research findings or other knorvledge to a plarr or a design of lrerv or substantially

improved (sofirvare) ploducts bef'ole the stalt of the commercial ttse.

Development expenditures on an individual project are recognized as an intangible asset lvhen the Group can denìonstrate

. the technical 1èasibiliry oicompleting the intangible asset so that the asset rvill be available t'or use or sale;

. its intention to complete and its abilify to use or sell the asset:

. how the asset will genelate futttre economic benetìts;

. the availability of resources to complete the asset; atrd

. the ability to nreasure reliably the expenditure during developnterrt.

The Group has determined that the conditions lor recognizing internally genelated intangible assets fi'ont ploplietary sofnvare. guide

aud othel product development activities are not met until shortl¡. befbre the products are available tbr sale, unless either'(i) the Group

has strong evidence that the above criteria are met and a detailed business plan is available shou'ing the asset will on a reasonable basis

gerlerate tìrtule ecolronric benetìts oL (ii) the developurent is done based upon specific request of the customer, it is highly tikely that the

Group r,vill be able to market the product also to other parties than the custouret', the development is subject to an agreemetrt and the

substance of the agleement is that the customer leimburses the Group f'or a signifìcant portion. bLrt not all, of the development expenses

ilrcurred. As such. development expenditules not satisfying the above criteria and expenditures on the research phase ofinternal projects

are lecoguized in the consolidated income staterÌerlt as inculred. Internally genelated intangible assets ft'om proprietary softrvare are

amortized over theil'useful lives, starting fi'om the moment they ale ready f'or use/available f'or sale.

Follorving initial lecognition ofthe developnrent expenditule as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation

and accumulated impairrnent losses. Arnortisation of the asset begins r,vhen development is complete and the asset is available tbr use. It
is arrortised over the period of expected future benefit, rvhich is detennined on a project-by-project basis. Amortisation is recorded in

cost of sales. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Intangible assets other than goodrvill and capitalized development expenditures

Intangible assets cornprise acquired technology and customer portt'olio, patents and licenses. goodu'ill and technology and custourers

acquired in connection rvith business combinations. Those intangible assets are measured on initial t'ecognition at cost. except for the

acquired technology and customers alising from business combinations, which are measttred initially at fail'value. Follou'ing initial
recognition, intangible assets other than goodlvillare carried at cost less any accumulated amoltizatiotr and accutnulated irnpairment

losses, if any.

The useful life of the intangible assets is as follolvs:

01 15

OC

Softlvare:
Patents and licenses:
Acquired customers:
Technology:
Order Backlog:

3 years;
5 years;
5-20 years;

6-10 years;
Period over which olders r,l'ill be completed.

The intangible assets r¡'ith fìnite lives are amortized ovel their useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an

indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amoftization period and the amortization method fol an intangible asset with a

finite useful life are revierved at least at the end ofeach reporting period. The amortization expense on intangible assets rvith finite lives

is recognized in the consolidated income statement in the line "net othe¡ operating income".

Impairment of goodwill and other non-financial assets (excluding inventories and deferred tax assets)

Impairment tests on goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite uset-ul economic lives or capitalized developrnent expenses

rvhiclr are not amortized yet, are undertaken annually at the fìnancial yeal end. Othel non-financial assets and goodrvill are subject to

impairment tests u,henever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. \ühere the
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ca¡ying value ofan asset exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher ofvalue in use and fair value less costs to sell), the asset ls

written down accordingly.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the impaiment test is carried out on the smallest

Group of assets to which it belongs for which there are separately identifiable cash flows: its cash generating units (CGUs). Goodwill is

allocated o¡ initial recognition to each of the Group's CGUs that at'e expected to beneflt ftom the synetgies of the combination giving

rise to the gooclwill.
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The Group bases its impairrnent calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calcttlations, which are prepared separately for each ofthe
Group's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations genelally cover a period of five
years. For longer periods, a long-tenn growth rate is calculated and applied to ftlftrre cash flows projected aftel the fifth year.

Inrpairntent charges are includecl in plofit or loss, except, whele applicable, to the extent they reverse gains pl'eviously lecognized in

other conrprehensive income. An irnpairrnent loss recognized lor goodwill is not reversed.

Where goodwill fonls pafi of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed oi the goodwill associated

with the operation disposed of is included in the canying amoullt of the opetation rvhen deternrining the gain ot loss on disposal of the

operation. Goodwill disposed of in this citcumstance is rneasured based on the relative values of the opet'atiorr disposed of and the

portion ofthe cash-genelating unit retained.

Inventories and Contracts in progress

Inventories are valued at the lowel ofcost and net realizable value. Costs incun'ed in bdnging each product to its present location and

condition are accounted for as follows:

. Raw materials: pnrchase cost on a fir'st in, first out basis; and

. Finished goods and work in progress: cost ofdirect materials and labor and a propofiion ofmanufacturing overheads based

ou the normal operating capacity, but excluding bomowing costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estinrated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

A write-offofinventolies is estinrated based on an ageing or rotation analysis.

Work in progress relates to production of inventory for which a customer has not yet been secured, while contracts in progress are

contract assets that relate to production for specific customers in performance of a signed corltract. We refet'also to the accounting
policy on revenue recognition.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified at initial recognition, and subsequently rreasured as at anrortised cost, fair value through other'

comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification offinancial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the

Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for wbich the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fait value
plus, in the case ofa financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a

significant financing cornponent or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in fout' categories:

. Financial assets at amortised cost;

. Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments);

. Financia[ assets designated at fair value through OCl with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition
(equiry inshuments); and

. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets measut'ed at amortized cost

This category is the most re levant to the Group. The Group measures financial assets at arnortised cost if both of the following
conditions are met:

. The f,rnancial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
casl-r flows; and
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. The contractual telms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that ate solely payments of principal

and interest on the prhcipal arnount outstanding.

Financial assets, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective

interest (EIR) method and ale subject to impairment. Gains and losses are lecognised in proflrt ot loss when the asset is derecognised,

modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair t,alue through OCI with recycling of cunulative gaíns and losses (debt instruments)

The Group cnrrently does not have financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of culnr,rlative gains and losses.
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Financial assefs designaled alfair value through OCI with no recvclino oJ cunniative gains and losses upon derecognítion (equily
inslnunents)

The Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to classiff the minority intelest in the non-listed equiry investment Essentium
Inc, as disclosed in Note 10 and Note 20, as a financial asset designated at fair value through OCI as this measurement is most
lepresentative ol the business nrodel for this asset. Gain and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to plofit and loss.
Dividends are recognised as other operational income in the consolidated income statement when the right of payment has been
established, except when the Gr:oup benefits from such proceeds as a recovely ofpart of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,

such gains ate recorded in OCL Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are uot subject to impairnrent assessment.

Financial assets nleasLffecl atfair value Íhrouglt profit or loss

The Group does not cur-r'ently have financial assets classified as financial assets at fair value through plofit or loss except t-or a call
option on non-controlling interests in RapidFit+ as disclosed in Note 13 and the derivatives, which are cat't'ied in the staternent of
financial position at fair value with changes recognized in the income statement in the lines financial income/expense.

DerecogniÍion

A financial asset is derecognized when:

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

. The Group has h'ansferred its rights to receive cash flows from the assets.

Intpairment oJ Jinancia I assets

Further disclosures relating to irnpairment of financial assets are also provided in Note 3 Signifìcant accounting judgments, estimates
and assnrnptions.

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for alt debt insh'urrents not held at fair value tlrrough profit or
loss.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplifred apploach in calculating ECLs. A loss allowance is recognized
at each reporting date based on lifetime ECLs. The Gloup established a provision matrix that is based on its historical loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors speciflc to the debtors and the economlc envlronment.

For all other receivables, ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant inclease in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provìded for credit losses that l'esult from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a l2-month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance
is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
anributable transaction costs.

The Group's hnancial liabilities include hade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative
financial instruments including wntten put optlons over non-controlling interests.

Financial liabilities qt amortized cost

The trade and other payables, and loans and borrowings are classified as financial liabilities at amot'tized cost.

Those financial liabilities al'e measured at amortized cost using the effective intel'est rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in the
income statemert when the liabilities are derecognized as well as thlough the effective interest rate method amortization process.

NYM
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Financial liabilities atfair value through profit and |oss

The derivative financial instruments are classified as financial liabilities at fail value through profìt and loss except for the written put
options on non-controlling interests which is disclosed below.

Written put options on notr-controlling interest

The Group t'ecognizes a financial liability fot the written put options on non-controlling interest. The writteu put options have a variable
redemption plice based on a fomula as speciflred in the contract (see Note 13).

. The flnancial liability is initially recognized at fair value and the fair value is reclassifìed from non-controlling interest and,
for any auroLrnt higher than the non-controlling interest, florn consolidated reseryes.
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The fair value is deterrnined as the present value of the redemptron amoì.rnt.

Any change in the fair valne as a result ofa change in the estirnated redernption price is recognized directly in consolidated
reselves. Any nnwinding effect of the present value of the redemption price is lecognized dir:ectly in profit and loss (financial
cost).

No share of profit is allocated to the non-controlling interest.

Upon exercise of the written put option, the canying value will be offset rvith the cash payment received. When the written
put option is not exercised, the canying value of the f,rnancial liability is der:ecognized against non-conffolling interest with
the difference going to consolidated reserves.

Contpound fi nancia I i ns tt'tm rc n ts

The Group has issued convertible debt which is accounted for as a compound financial instrument. For those instruments, the Group
detemines the canying amount of the liability component by measuling the fair value of a similar liability (including any embedded
non-equity derivative feahu'es) that does not have an associated equity cornponent. The carrying anrount of the equiry instrument is then

determined by deducting the fair value of the financial liability fì'om the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole.

Derecognitiott

A financial liability is detecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled ol expires

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement offinancial position if
there is a cnrrently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the assets and settle the liabilities sirnultaneously.

Share capital

Financial instruments issued by the Group are classifìed as equity only to the extent that they do not rneet the definition of a financial
liabiliry or financial asset. The Group's ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result ofa past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be lequired to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

Pensions benefits

The Group has a defined contribution obligation where the Group pays contributions based on salaries to an insurance company, in
accordance with the laws and agreenrents in each country.

The Belgian defined contlibution pension plans are by law with variable minimum retums based on the Belgian government bonds,
with a minimum of 1.75%" and a maximum of 3.75Yo, effective for contributions paid as ft'om 2016. For contribution paid until 2015,
the minimum gnaranteed return is 3 .25Yo on employer contributions and, 3.7 5Yo on employee contributions.

These plans qualifi as defined benefit plans. Contributions are recognized as expenses for the period in which employees perfom the
corresponding services. Outstanding payments at the end of the period are shown as other current liabilities.

Those plans are accounted for as a defined benefit plan however are considered not material

Share based payments

Dilectors and employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions). The Group cunently has only
warrants and share-appl'eciation rights as shate-based payments.

NYM
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Ec¡ tt i ty -s e t ll e d h'a ns qc t ions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similal services are measut'ed, indirectly, at the fair value of the

equíty instmrnents gr-anted. The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in other capital

reserves in equify, over the period in which the perfonnance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognized

for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and

the Gloup's best estimate of the number of equity instnÌments that will ultimately vest. The income statement expense or credit for a

period represents the moverlent in cnmnlative expense recognized at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized as

employee benehts expense.
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The Group does cnrrent'ly only have equity-settled share-based payments that have service-based vesting condìtions and no ìnstruments

with market vesting conditions.

No expense is recognized fol awalds that do not ultimately vest.

'When 
the terurs of an equity-settled award are nlodified, the minirlnnr expense recognized is the expense as if the terrns had not been

r.nodified, if the oliginal terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognized for any modification that iucteases the total

fail value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise benehcial to the employee as lreasured at the date of modification.

When an equity-settled awald is cancelled, it is tleated as ifit vested on the date ofcancellation, and any expense not yet recognized for
the award is recognized inrnediately. This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the contlol of either the entity or the

employee are not tnet. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacetnent award on the

date that it is glanted, the cancelled and new awalds are treated as if they were a modiflicatior.r of the original award, as described in the

previous palagraph.

Cas h -s e ttled t rans act io ns

The Group has cash-settled shale-based payment tLansaction for certain employees in certain countries due to legal r:equirements (in the

forrn ofshare-appleciation rights). The cost ofcash-settled transactions is measured initially at fail value at the gl'ant date. This fair'

value is expensed over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a correspouding liability. Tlre liabilily is tenreasured to fair
value at each repofting date up to, and including the settlement date, with changes in fairvalue tecognized in ernployee benefits

expense.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group's revenue, which is presented net of sales taxes, is plimalily generated by the sale of our software and 3D printed products

antl services. Software revenue is comprised of perpetnal and periodic licenses, maintenance reventle and software developtnent service
fees. Perpetual license holders may opt to take an annual maintenance contract, which leads to annttal fees. Periodic licenses entitle the

customer to maintenance, suppol't and product updates without additional charge. Revenue from protorypes and end ploducts involving
3D printing technology is delived from oul network ofproduction centers and may include support and services such as pre-production

collaboration prior to the actual production.

The Group sells its products and software througlr its direct sales force and through authorized distributors.

Software license revenue, maintenance and/or sofrware development seruice fees may be bundled in one anangement, or may be sold
separately.

The Group recognizes revenue fol goods including softwale based on the five-step model as a resttlt of the application of IFRS l5 since

January l,2018.

1. Identi$ the contract(s) with a customel';

2. Identif, the perfolmance obligations in the contract;

3. Determine the tl'ansaction price;

4. Allocate the transaction price to the perfotmance obligations in the contract; and

5. Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The impact of the application of IFRS l5 is discussed in Note 2. Basis of preparation.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transfened to the customer at an amount

tbat reflects the consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled in exchange from those goods and services.

If the considemtion in a contract includes a variable anount, the Group estimates the amount of considetation to which it will be

entitled in exchange fol transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estirnated at contract inception and

constrained until it is highly plobable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue t'ecognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Variable consideration is mainly related to
quantities sold, volume (step-based) rebates and development tirne spend.
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Protolypes and end prodttcts involving 3D printíng technologt

The Group recognizes revenue on the sale of goods to the custorner or distributor at a point in time when control of the asset is

transferred, generally upon shipment or delivery taking into accoì.rnt the shipment terms (usually Ex-works or FOB Tinre of Shiprnent

Incoterms (Intenrational Commercial Tenns)).
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P erpe tua I lic ens ed s oJttvare

The sale and/or license of software ploducts is deemed to have occut'red at a point in tinle, i.e. when a customer eithel has taken

possession of or has the abiliry to take immediate possession of the software and the software key.

Perpetual software Iicenses can include one yeal maintenance and suppott services as a sepal'ate pet'fotrttance obligation. The Company

sells these maìntenance seryices also on a stand-alone basis and is therefole capable of determining their stand-alone selling price. On

this basis, tfie arnount of the embedded maintenance is separated frotn tlre fee for the perpetual lìcetrse and is recognized ratably over

the period to which they relate.

Tinte - b a,ç e d li c e ns e d,s oJh v ar e

The time-based license agleements include the nse of a software license for a fixed term and maintenance and suppott services during

the salne per.iod. The Cor-¡pan¡r does ¡ot sell tinle-based licenses without maintenance and suppott setwices and thet'efote tevenues is

satished over tine for the entile arrangements and is recognized latably over the tem.

lVfaintenance ond sttpporl sert,ices

Maintenance and support ser.¿ices al'e satisfied over tinre and as such, the Gtoup recognizes this revenue latably on a straight-line basis

over the term that the maintenance selvice is provided. In geueral, maintenance selvices al'e not automatically renewed.

A maintenance aud support contract rray include a reinstatement for plevious years when the custonret'did not have a maintenance atld

suppoft contract pleviously. Revenue from reinstatements are recognized immediately when the maintenance and suppoft serryices

corlrmence.

Software dev el opm e nt s e rv ic e s (S D S)

SDS include customized development of software components for customers. Revenue flom SDS agt'eements when distinct from other

performance obligations is satisfied over tirne. Revenue is then recognized either on tìme and material basis or on the stage of
completion of each service contract and wlren the stage of cornpletion can be measured reliably.

The Company deternrines the percentage-of-completion by compaling labor hours incun'ed to-date to the estimated total labor hours

requìred to complete the project. The Company considers labor houts to be the most reliable available measul'e of progress on these

projects. Adjustments to the Company's estimates of the time to completion are made when facts resulting in a change become known.

Wþen the estimate indicates that a loss will be incun'ed, such loss is recognized imrnediately.

Contract.s t^,ith multiple pet formance oblígations

The Gro¡p has entered into a nnmber contracts with multiple performance obligations, such as when selling perpehlal licenses that may

include maintenance and support (included in price of perpehral licenses) and time-based licenses (that include embedded maintenance

and support, both of which may be sold with software development services, training, and other product sales). In some cases, the

Group delivers software development services bundled with the sale of the software.

The Group evaluates whether each performance obligation is distinct from each other, i.e. the customer can benefit from the good or

sen¡ice on its own, or with readily available resorlrces. Certain development services significantly modif, and/or enhance the software

license and as such are not considered distinct and combined with the software license.

In those contracts, whether sold to end-customers or to collaboration partners, the Group uses either price list, historical plicing
information or management's best estimate of selling prices (e.g. also using a cost-plus method) to determine the stand-alone selling

price for each distinct perfomrance obligation, including software and software-related services such as maintenance and support. In
general, elements in such arrangements are also sold on a stand-alone basis and stand-alone selling prices are readily available.

Revenue is allocated to each distinct perfomance obligation C'PO') based on the relative percentage of the stand-alone selling price for
each PO compared to the total ofstand-alone selling plices for all PO ovel'the total transaction price and is recognized when the

revenue recognition critelia described above are met.

Contracts with collaboration partners in the medical segment also inchrde rnultiple elements such as softwat'e, maintenance and support

services, training, software development services, 3D printed products and royalties. Revenue fi'om those contracts is determined and

recognized consistent with other multiple element arrangetnents.
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For certain contracts with collaboration partners, the Company also receives up-front fees, paid by customers for certain exclusivity
rights granted only on previously acquired perpetual soflware licenses, which may be bundled with transfer of title, rights and

ownership ofcertain softwale products and rnaintenance and support selices. In case the up-front fees do not relate to already
delivered good or setvices, the Group include the up-front fees in the total transaction príce which is then allocated to all the distinct
performance obligations. Other contracts with collaboration paftners include prepaid fees to ptrrchase a rnaximum nurnber of "Plan
Only" cases during a 1 2-month period. Tn this case, the prepaid fees are recognized over the period of I 2 months based on the expected

number of "Plan Ouly" cases that will be purclrased.
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Contract assels

A colltract asset is the right to cousideration in exchange for goods or selices transferred to the customer'. If the Gloup performs by
transfenìng goods or selices to a customer before the customer pays consideration ol before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are only contracts in plogress that are disclosed with the line
inventory and contracts in progress in the statement of financial position. We refer to our accounting policies regarding Iuventoties and

Contlacts in Progress

Contract liahilities

A contract liability is the obligation to tlansfel goods or services to a custolner for which tlre Gloup has received considelation (ol an

amountofconsidelationisdue)t'ornthecustonler IfacustomerpaysconsidelationbefotetheGrouptransfelsgoodsorservicestothe
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payrnent is nrade or the payrnent is due (whichevel is eallier). Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Gronp performs under the contract. Contract liabilities are plesented as deferred incorne in the

statement ol fìnancial position.

Conlracl costs

The Group does not have significant costs to obtain contlacts and those costs are expensed as incurred

The Group nray have costs incun'ed in ftrlfìlling contracts that are acconnted for as intangible assets. When those costs ale not in scope
ofanother standards, these costs are accounted for undet'contt'acts in progress (see contract assets). For certain contl'acts, the Group
may have significant softwale development expenses that are not considered a "distinct perfonnance obligation" which are accounted
for as an intangible assets. The Group evaluates whether those costs meet the recognition criteria for an intangible assets and when
criteria are not met, expenses those costs as incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized when there is leasonable assurance that the glant will be received and all attached conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to development costs or anothel expense, it is recognized as income ovel the grant per:iod

necessary to match the income on a systematic basis to the costs that it is irtended to compensate. When the grant relates to the

construction ofbuildings, it is recognized as income over the depreciation period ofthe related building.

Such grants have been leceived fi'om the federal and regional govemments and fl'om the European Union in the foms of grants linked
to certain ofits research and development programs, reduced payloll taxes and the financing ofthe constnrction ofan office building in
Leuven (Belgium) and in Freiberg (Germany).

Where retention of a government grant l'elated to assets or to income, is dependent on the Company satisfying certain criteria, it is

initially recognized as defelred inconre. When the criteria for retention have been satisfied, the defen'ed income balance is teleased to
other operating income in the consolidated income statement on a systematic basis over the periods in which the entity recognizes as

expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Any government grants recognized as incorne do not have any unftllfilled conditions or other contingencies attached to them, as

otherwise we would not be recognizing income fot such.

Other financial income and expenses

Other financial income and expenses include mainly foreign currency gains or losses on financial transactions and bank related
expenses.

Taxes

Current income tax

Income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting
date.
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Current income tax relating to itelns that are recognized ditectly in equity is recognized in equity atld not in the income statement.

Managemelt periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax rehrnls with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are

subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Defened tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and

liabilities and their carrying arrottnts for financial reporting pulposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized lor all deductible
temporary differences, carry lorward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporaly differences, and the carry forward ofunused tax credits and unttsed tax losses can

be utilized.

The canying arnount oldeferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longerprobable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all olpart of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unlecognized defen'ed tax assets ale
reassessed at each reporting date and ale recognized to the extent that it has beconre probable that fi,rture taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered

Defened tax assets and liabilities ale measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the yearwhen the asset is realized ot'the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the repor-ting date.

Deferred tax assets and defen'ed tax liabilities ale offset, ifa legally enfolceable right exists to set offcurrent tûx assets against cunent
inconre tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the sanre taxable entity and the same taxation autholity.

Sales tax

Revenue, expenses and assets are lecognized net ofthe amount ofVAT, except:

. Where the sales tax incurred on a pnrchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case

the sales tax is recognized as part ofthe cost ofacquisition ofthe asset or as pal't ofthe expense itetn as applicable; and

. Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount ofsales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part ofreceivables ol payables in the
statement of financial position.

Nelv and revised standards not yet adopted

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the closing date ofthe Group's financial statements are

disclosed below.

Of those standards that are not yet effect¡ve, /FRS I 6 Leases is expected to have a matetial impact on the Group's financial statements

in the period of initial application

IFRS 16, Leases

The Group is required to adopt IFRS I 6 Leases from January I, 2019. The Group has assessed the estir¡ated impact that initial
application of IFRS 16 will have on its consolidated financial statements, as described below. The actual impacts of adopting the

standard on January 1,2019 may change because:

. The Group has not finalised the testing and assessment of controls over its new IT systems; and

. The new accounting policies ar:e subject to change until the Group presents its first financial statements that include the date

of initial application.

IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease account¡ng model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset representing
its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition
exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard - i.e. lessors

continue to classifu leases as finance ol opetating leases.

IFRS 16 replaces existing leases guidance, including IAS l7 Leases,IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,

SIC- 1 5 Operating Lease,s - Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transaclions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

The Group will, where it acts as a lessee, recognise new assets and liabilities for its operating leases of buildings, vehicles and

machinery & equipment. The nature of expenses related to those leases will now change because the Group will recognise a

depreciation charge for right-of-use assets and interest expense on lease liabilities.
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Previously, the Group lecognised opetating lease expense on a straight-line basis over the term ofthe lease, and recognised assets and

liabilities only to the extent that there was a tirning difference between actual lease payments and the expense recognised.

No signihcant impact on income statement is expected fol the Group's finance leases

Based on the infonnation cun-ently available, the Gloup estimates that it will recognise additional lease liabilities of K€4,998 as at

January l, 2019 and estimated annual depreciation expense of K€2,483.

The Group plans to apply IFRS I 6 initially on January 1,2019, using the modified retrospective apploach rvith the Right-of-Use asset

equal to the lease liability. Therefore, there will be no restatement of comparative information.
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The Group plans to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the definition of a lease on transition. This means that it will apply IFRS

l6 to all contlacts entered into before January 1,2019 and identified as leases in accordance with IAS I 7 and IFRIC 4.

The othet'standards, interpletations and amendmeuts issued by tlre IASB and relevarrt fol the Group, but not yet effective ale not

expected to have a matelial impact on the Group's funre consolidated financial statements:

. IFRTC 23 Uncerlainly over Tax Treattlents;

. IFRS l7 Insurance Contt'acts;

. Anrendrnents to IFRS 9: Prepayment Featutes with Negative Cortrpensation;

. Antendments to IFRS l0 and IAS 28: Sale ol Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture;

. Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures;

. Arnendments to IAS 19: Plan Anendmeut, Cultailment or Settlement;

. Annual Improvemeuts to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle-various standards (IFRS 3 Business Cornbinations; IFRS ll
Joint Arrangements; IAS l2 Income Taxes; TAS 23 Borrowing Costs); and

. Aurendments to Relerences to Concephtal Framework in IFRS Standards;

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosules. Uncertainty about these

assumptions alrd estimates could result in outcomes that requile a material adjustment to the catrying anlou1lt of assets or liabilities for
future periods.

On an ongoing basis, the Group evaluates its estimates, assumptions and judgments, including those lelated to revenue recognition,
developruent expenses, share-based payment transactions, income taxes, impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and propefty,
plant & equipment and business combinations.

The Group based its assuntptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared.

Existing circulnstances and assurnptions about future developments, however, ffay change due to malket changes or circumstances

arising beyond the conh'ol ofthe Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Revenue recognition

Our revenue recognition policies require management to make significant estimates. Managetnent analyzes varions factors, including a

review of specific transactions, histolical experience, creditworthiness of customers and current market and economic conditions.
Changes in judgments based upon these factors could impact the timing and amount of revenue and cost recognized and thus affects our
results of operations and financial condition. The significant estimates and judgments relate to:

. The assessment whether a performance obligation is distinct in a bundled sales transactions;

. Estimates of the variable considerations and the assessment of the revenue constraint limitation;

. Estimates of the stand-alone selling prices for each distinct performance obligation; and

. The stage of completion of our customized development of software components for customers when tevenue is satisfied
over tlme.

The Group is making signif,rcant judgments when performing the assessment of whether a performance obligation is distinct from the

other performance obligations in a contract, i.e. whether the good or service has a benefit for the cttstomer in its own or together with
readily available resource and/or whether the good or selice is highly intenelated or a signihcant input with another good or service
delivered, or whether it significantly modifies or customizes another good or service. The relevant judgments include the following:

. \ùy'hether the software license is distinct from the 3D printed guides - in nrost cases with contracts with collabroration
partnel's in the Materialise Medical segment, tlre software licenses is combined with the manufachrring of the 3D printed
guides as the softwale license has no beneflrt for the customer without the manufacturing services. Note that the Group is

implementing a new feature "Plan Only" which where the collaboration partners could benefit from the software license in
Its own.

OCNYM
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Whethel'the developrnent sewices al'e distinct fi'om other per-formance obligations - in lrost cases, those performance

obligations are distinct however for one contract with a collabol'ation pal'tner in the Materialise Medical segntent, the

software license is combined with the license and the 3D printed guides as one "distinct" performance obligation

For the staud-alone selling prices, the Group is using prices fi'om price list or historical prices for sinilar transactions. However, itt
certain cases, snch infonnation is not irnurediately available and in such cases, the Group estimates tlre stand-alone sellìng price by
using a cost-plus or another estimate. In addition, for certain performance obligations such as developnreut setvices, stand-alone selling
prices also require an estir¡ate of the time to cotnplete the development.
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Certain contracts include estimates ofvarìable considerations within the transaction price and assessing the revenue constraint, sttch as:

. Quantities/volnme sold for fixed prices in relation to, but not limited to, rnannfacturing of 3D printed products, software
licenses sold, maintenance renewals;

. Contractual plices may be different based on volume pulchased during a certain period;

. FTE spend lor developlrent or other services billed on a time and material basis; and

. Volunre rebates.

The method applied to estintate the variable considelation is dependent on the number of possible scenarios and the plobability of each

sceuario. In case there are many possible scenalios with awide range of probabilities (each less than 50%), the Group will use the

expected value method while the most likely method is used when there is a scenario with a highel probability (mole than 50%).

Variable consideration is not constlained when l¡ased on historical experience and/or high reliable business forecast and/or the

timeframe of the estimates, the Gl'oup detennines that thele is a high plobability that this will not result in a flltur'e revenue reversal.

We detennine the stage of completion for developrnent contracts satisfied over tinre by comparing labor hours incnr-red to-date to the

estimated total labor hours required to cornplete the project. We consider labor hours to be the most reliable, available nreasure of
progt'ess on these projects. Adjustnrents to estirnates to cornplete are made in the peliods in which facts lesulting in a change becolre
known. When the estimate indicates that a loss will be incurred, such loss is lecorded in the peliod identif,red. Significant jttdgrnents and

estimates are involved in detelmining the percent conrplete of each contract. Diflèr'ent assumptions could yield materially diffetent
results.

Developntent scpenses

Under IAS 38, internally genelated intangible assets fi'om the development phase are t'ecognized if cerlain conditions are met. These

conditions include the technical feasibilify, intention to complete, the abilify to use or sell the asset under development, and the

demonstration of how the asset will generate probable fufure economic benefits. The cost of a recognized intemally generated

intangible asset comprises all directly attributable cost necessary to rnake the asset capable ofbeing used as intended by tnanagernent.

In contrast, all expenditures arising from the research phase are expensed as incurt'ed.

Determining whether internally generated intaugible assets frorn development are to be recognized as intangible assets reqnires
signihcant judgment, parlicularly in detemrining whether the activities are considered research activities or developmert activities,
whether the ploduct enhancement is substantial, whether the completion of the asset is technical feasible considering a company-
specifìc approach, the probability of funrre economic benefits from the sale or use including an assessment whether FDA approval rvill
be obtained.

The Group has detemrined that the conditions for recognizirg intemally geuerated intangible assets from proprietary soffware, guide
and other ploduct development activities ale not met until shortly before the products are available for sale, unless either (i) the Group
has stlong evidence that the above critelia are met and a detailed business plan is available showing the asset will on a reasonable basis
generate future economic benefits or (ii) the development is done based upon specific request of the customer, the Group has the

intention to malket the product also to other parties than the customer, the development is subject to an agreement and the substance of
the agreement is that the customer reinrburses the Group for a significant portion of the developrnent expenses incurred. As such,

developnrent expenditures not satisffing the above critelia and expenditures on the teseat'ch phase of internal projects are lecognized in
the consolidated ircome statement as incurred. This assessment is monitored by the Group on a regular basis.

We have determined that the criteria for internally generated intangible assets were met for two projects in 2018: (1) the sofnvare
development of a new planner for hospitals within a certain medical field and (2) the process to obtain FDA and E.U. approval for a 3D
printed product within the Materialise Medical segment. For the latter, we determined that there is a low risk that FDA approval will not
be obtained although clinical trials have to be stafted and commercialization is not expected beforc 2022. This assessrnent was made by
management based on several factors including the developed product itself, the exclusive patent rights obtained on the developed
product, the successful application of the product on a number of patients as part of the emergency exception use obtained from the

FDA and the continued discussions to speed up the trial duration and commercialization. The product is also expected to receive E.U.
approval for commercialization by the end of 2020. The total amount capitalized is K€158 andK€524 as per December 31, 2018.

S hare -b as e d p aynxen t trans ac t ¡on s

The Group rreasures the cost of equily-settled transactions with employees by refelence to the fair value of the equity instruments at the

date at which they are granted and measured the cost ofcash-settled transactions by reference to the fair value ofthe equity instrunent
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at the date of reporting. The Group has applied the Black-Scholes valuation model to estimate fair value. Using this model requites
management to make assumptions with regards to volatility and expected life of the equity instruments. The assumptions used for
estimating fair valne for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note l4 and are estimated as follows:

. Volatility is estirnated based on the average annualized volatility of the Group;
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Estimated life of the warranf is estimated to be until the first exercise period which is fypically the rnonth after their vesting;

Fair value of the shares is determined based on the share price of the Group on Nasdaq at the date of issuance. For the grants

prior to the initial public offering, the fair value of the shares was estimated based on a discounted cash flow model with
3-year cash flow projections and a r-nultiple of EBITDA determined based on a number qnoted peers in the 3D printing
industry; and

The dividend return is estinrated by reference to the [ristorical dividend payment of the Group. Cullently, this is estimated to
be zero as no dividends have been paid since inception.

Inconte taxes

Deferled tax assets are lecognized f-or unused tax losses to the extent that it is plobable that taxable prolìt will be available against

which the losses can be utilized. Signifìcant managernent judgment is requiled to detennine the amonnt of deferred tax assets that can

be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level olfuture taxable protits together with futule tax planning strategies.

As atDecember3l,2018, the Group had K€25,285 (2017: K€11,948;2016: K€9,45 l) of tax losses cat'ty lotward and othertax credits
suclr as investrnent tax credits and notional in terest deduction, of which KC15,592 related to Matelialise NV (20 I 7: K€4,58 I ; 20 I 6:

K€1,570). These losses relate to the palent and subsidiaries that have a history of losses, in countt'ies where these losses do not expit'e,

except for the notional interest deduction of K€0 in 2018 (2017: K€3 l5; 2016: K€3 l5) and maynot beused to offsettaxable income
elsewhere in the Grolrp.

With respect to the unusedtax losses of MaterialiseNV, no deferredtax assets have been recognized in 2018,2017 and 2016, given that
in view of the Belgian Patent lncome Deduction and Innovation Income Deduction there is an uncertainly to which extent these tax
losses will be used in fuftrre years. As from July 1,2016, the new Innovation Income Deduction replaces the formel Patent Income
Dedtrction. Under the grandfathering nrle the Patent Income Deduction system can still be applieduntil June 30,2021. The Belgian
Patent Income Deduction allows companies to deduct 80% of the quali$ing gross patent incorne from the taxable basis. Under the

Innovation Income Deduction systeln, companies can dednct up to 85% of their net innovation income from the taxable basis. Based on

its analysis in 201 8 the Company has assessed that no deferred tax asset should be accounted for with respect to its unnsed tax losses in
Belgium.

With respect to the unused tax losses of the other entities, no deferred tax assets lrave been recognized in 2018 (201 7: K€0; 2016:

K€ 109). Tlre Gloup has not recognized defelred tax assets on unused tax losses totalling K€ I 1 ,906 in 201 8 (2017: K€7 ,904; 2016:
K€8,877) given that it is not probable that sufficient positive taxable base will be available in the foreseeable ftrhrre against which these

tax losses can be utilized.

If the Group was able to recognize all unlecognized defened tax assets, net proflt would have increased by K€3,53 1 in 20 1 8 during
which K€1 1,906 of tax losses wele utilized. Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 22.10.

Impairment of gooùvill, intangible assets and propert,v, plant & equipment

The Grotrp has goodwill for a total amount of K€ 17,491 as at December 31, 2018 (2017: K€17,552;2016: K€8,860) which has been

subject to an impairment test. The goodwill is tested for impairment based on a discounted cash flow rrodel with cash flows for the next
five years derived from the budget and a residual value considering a perpetual growth rate. The value in use is sensitive to the discount
rate nsed for the DCF model as well as the expected fulure cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. The key
assumptions used to detennine the valne in use for the different CGUs are disclosed and ftrilher explained in Note 5.

The Group capitalized development expenses fol a total alnount of K€682 as at Decernber 3 I , 201 8 which are not in the condition as

intended by management and as such not amortized. Those development expenses have been subject to an impairment test based on a

discounted cash flow model with cash flows derived from the latest business plan. The value in use is sensitive to the discount rate used

for the DCF rnodel as well as the expected cornmercialization date for the products and the expected future cash inflows after
commercialization. We refer to the section on development expenses above for further explanations.

'When 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the intangible assets and property, plant and equþment

may not be recoverable, we estimate the value in use for the individual assets, or ',¡/hen not possible, at the level of CGUs to which the

individual assets belong. No impairment chalges have been recorded during 2018 (2017: K€0; 2016: K€0).

OCNYM
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We determine and allocate the pulchase ptice of an acquired business to the assets acquired and tiabilities assumed as of the business

combination date. Business combinations are discussed further in Note 4. The purchase price allocation process requires us to use

signifi cant estimates and assumptions, inc luding

. estimated fair valne of the acquired intangible assets;

. estimated fair value of property, plant and equipment; and

. estimated fair value of the contingent consideration.

The contingent consideration as included in the financial statements is recolded at fair value at the date ofacquisition and is reviewed

on a regular basis. The fair value of the contingent consideration is based on risk-adjusted furure cash flows of diffel'ent scenarios

discounted using applopriate interest rates. The structure ofthe possible scenados and the probability assigned to each one ofthern is

reassessed by management at every repolting period and requites judgement flom management about the outcome and ptobability of
the different scenarios as well as the evolution of the variables.
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White we are usìng our best estimates and assumptions as part of the purchase price allocation process to accurately value assets

acquired and liabilities assur¡ed at the date of acquisition, our estinrates and assumptions at'e inhet'ently ttncertain and subject to

refinenrent. Exanrples of critical estirrates in valuing cerlain of the intangible assets we have acqttired or may acquire in the futlre

include but are not limited to:

. future expected cash f'lows fi.o¡r customel'contracts and relationships, sofrware license sales and uraintetrallce agreements;

. the fair value of the plant and equipment

. the fair value ofthe defened revenue; and

. discount rates.

Provisionfor expecled credit losses oJ nncle receivables and contrctct assets

The Group uses a pr.ovision ntatrix to calculate ECLs for tlade receivables and col.ìtl'act assets. The pt-ovisiorr rates are based on days

past due fbr.groupì¡gs of various custorller- segments that have similar'loss pattems (i.e., by legal entity).

The provision matrix is inirially based on the Gr:oup's histolical observed default lates. The Gr:oup wiil calibrate the matrix to adiust the

histoi.ical cr-edit loss experiencó with forward-looking information. For instance, if folecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic

prod'ct) are expected tà deterior.ate over the next year which can lead to an increased nurnber ofdefatrlts, the historical defattlt lates are

äO¡nrt.á. At evèry repofting dare, the historical obsewed default rates are updated and chauges in the forward-looking estilnates are

analyzed.

The assessment of the correlation between histolical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a signiflrcant

estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast econornic conditions. The Group's historical

credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of cttstomer's acbual default in the funrre. The

information about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in Note 25.

4 Business Combinations

Acquisitions in 2018

The Group has not coÛrpleted any Business Combinations during the year'2018

Acquisitions in 2017

ACTech

The Gr.oup has signed a share and purchase agreement on October 4, 2017 to acquile all of the shares and voting interest of ACTech

Holding Gmbh, an entiry incorporåt.d in Germany, and its subsidiaties ACTech Gmbh and ACTech North Amelica Inc- (together

referreã to as 
..ACTech Group;) for a total purchase consideration in cash of K€28,907 (net of indemnification asset).

The German-based ACTech Group is specialist in producing limited runs of highly complex cast metal parts in a short timeframe.

ACTech Group will be part of the Manufacturing segment.
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The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition were

in 000€

Assets
Technology
Customer relations
Other intangible assets

Properry, plant & equipment
Defen'ed tax assets

Other non-cunent financial assets

Inventory
Trade receivables
Cash & cash eqnìvalents
Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities
Defened tax liabilities
Deferred income
Loans & bomowings
Trade payables
Tax payables

Other liabilities
Total Liabilities

Total identified assets and liabilities
Goodrvill

Acquisition price

The cash flow fi'orn the business combination is as follows:

Carrying
vrlue at

acq uisition
date

6 l?lì
19,986

503
56

? 156

5,176
2,244

542
31,193

(47)
( 1 ,298)

(r1,308)
(777)

(3,664)
(9,062)

(26,r 56)
11,037

Fair valuc
ndjustrnen ts

Frir value
at acquisition

date

5r5
17,092

98s
)ñ ))q

88

56
2,789
5,176
) )AA

542
49,716

(6,024)

( I 1,308)
(771)

(2,450)
(9,062)

(29,621)
20,095

8,8 l2
28,907

243
(4rs)

411

515
t7,092
(s,34s)

12,523

(s,971)
1,298

1 ,214

(3,465)
9,058

Cash & cash equivalents acquired
Acquisition price in cash including escrow
Total cash flow

(2,244)
29,418
27,174

The fairvalne of the identifiable assets and liabilities as included in ourconsolidated financial staternentsperDecernber31,2017 rvele

provisional as the final valuation had not beerr completed by the date these consolidated frnancial statements were approved for issue by
the board of directors. As of October 4,2018, we have completed the fair valne analysis of the ACTech bttsiness conrbination, which
corresponding adjushtrents to the intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, inventories and contracts in progress, other cttrrent

assets, investment grants and tax payables. The fail value of the identified assets and liabilities wereK€2,432 higher than the

provisional value at date of acquisition, with a corresponding reduction in goodwill. We refer to Note 2 for the detailed impact of the

restatement resulting from the final accounting of the ACTech business combination.

The accounting for the business cornbination resulted in fair values at date of acquisitìon of K€17 ,092 for customer relationships,

K€5 l 5 fot patented technology, K€826 for order backlog, and K€5 1 1 for tax contingencies subject to an indemnification asset. The fair
value of the receivables is K€5,176 which equals the gloss contracflial amounts receivable. Fair value analysis with lespect to property,
plant and eqnipment led to a fair value of K€20,229. A fair value adjustment was identified of K€433 for the inventory. The defen'ed

tax liabilities cornprise the tax effect of the fair value adjustments for the above described items.

The pur-chase price paid at the acquisition date amormted to K€29,418. The share and purchase agreement foresees that the Sellels will
indernrrily the Group for certain tax payables and contingencies that may occur in the peliod between 2018 and 2021 . An amount of
K€3,788 has been paid in an escrow account which can be applied agaìnst the indernnification asset. The Grottp has estimated that the

fair value of the indernnification asset is K€5 I 1 which lras been applied against the acquisition price. The indenrnification asset will be

paid out of the escrow account when the related tax payables and contingencies are paid.

There are no contingent considerations payable.
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The goodwill recognized is primar.ily attributable to the trained and knowledgable workforce and to tlre expected synergies that will be

rcaliledat level of software-platforms, manufachrring and existing customer base. The goodwill is not deductible for income tax

pruposes.

The total acquisition-related costs lecognized as an expense in the general & administlation costs are K€609-
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The cont¡ibltion of the acquired bnsiness to the revenue and net profit of the Gronp for the year ended December 3 I , 20 1 7 were,

respectively, K€9,965 andK€275. The pro fornra revenue and the plo forma net profit of the acquired business would have been

K€37,096 and K€2,060, respectively, if the business would have been acquired on January 1,2017.

Acquisitions in 2016

The Gloup has uot completed any Business Con.rbinations during the year 2016.

Changes in the measurement of the contingent consideration for previous acquisitions

Cenat

TheGroupsignedasaleandpurchaseagreernentonMarch l0,20l5toacquireall ofthesharesandvotirrginterestsofCenatBVBAfor
a consideiation in cash olK€1,547 and a contingent consideration lelated to cettain targets set over the cotling years betweerl K€0 and

K€2,250. The fair valne of this contingent consideration was estinrated at tinre of final accounting (December 3l , 2015) at K€l ,3 10.

Based ou the historical results and the forecasted financial infomration for the period 2018 to 2019 the Group has re-estìmated the fait

value of the contingent consideration at December 31 ,2016 to K€905, and maintained this estirlate per December 31 ,2017 .

In the course of 2018 a payment of K€263 was made to the formel shareholders. And on December 24,2018 an agreement was signed

detennining that the only lernaining and final considet'ation to be paid amounts to K€450, payable by the Gloup to the fotmer

shareholders in tlre course of early 2019. As at December 31, 2018 a payable of K€450 has been recorded under the othel'cun'ent

liabilities (we refer to Note 19). The inpact of the remeasurement has been recorded in the line "net other operating incorne" in the

consolidated income statelrent. This final considetation was paid on January 21 ,2019.
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The goodwill has been allocated to the cash generating units ("CGU") as follows:

in 000€

CGU: MAT NV SAM BE
CGU: e-Prototypy
CGU:ACTech
CGU: OrthoView
CGU: MATNV Manufachrring (Metal)
Total

in 000€

At January 1,2016
Cuttency translation
At December 31.2016
Additions
Curency translation
At December 31,2017
Cunency translation
At December 31, 2018

nm0ndEGV
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As of December 3l
20t 8 2017* 201 6

The changes in the canying value of the goodwill can be pr:esented as follows fol the years 2018,2017 and 2016:

3,241
194

8,8 t2
4,467

t77
17,491

3.241
818

8,812
4,504

t'77
17,552

3,241
775

4,667
r77

8,860

Total

9,664
(804)

8,860
8,812
(120)

17,552
(61 )

17,491

Gross

9,768
(804)

8,964
8,8 r2
(120)

17,656
(61)

17,595

Impairrne nt

(104)

(104)

(104)

(1 04)

The goodwill of Orthoview (UK) and of e-Prototypy (PL) include respectiveìy K€(37) and K€(24) impact of currency translation in
201 8.

The Gloup has performed an irnpairment test based on a discounted cash flow model with cash florvs fot'the next five years derived
from the budget and a lesidual value considering a perpetual growth rate. The MAT NV SAM BE and Cenat are included in the

reportable segment "Materialise Software". The CGU ACTech, e-Prototypy (PL) and MAT NV Manufacturing (Metal) ale included in
the reportable segnlent "Mate¡ialise Manufacnrring". The CGU Orthoview (UK) is included in the reportable segnrent "Materialise
Medical".

cGU. MAT NV SAM (BE)

The goodwill allocated to the CGU MAT NV SAM (BE) relates to the goodwilt from the acquisition of CENAT in 2015 and the
goodwill lelated to the acquisition of Marcanr in 201I (DE-3D Ptinting Sofrwale).

The impairment test is based on the projected discounted cash flows lesulting from the CGU MAT NV SAM BE, consideling a period
of five years. The main assumptions for goodwill impairment testing include a pre-tax discount rate (based on WACC) of I2.82Yo and a

perpetual glowth rate of 1.7lo/o. Otlrer assumptions include the year-on-year growth rate of the revenue, gross margin and the operating
costs which has been determined by management based on past experience. It was concluded that the value in use is higlrer than the

carrying value of the cash generating unit of K€36,700. There are no reasonable changes in assumptions that would reduce the value in
use below its carrying value of the cash generating unit.

CGU e-Prototypy

The goodwill relates to the acquisition of the Polish entity e-Prototypy. The impairment test on the CGU e-Prototypy is based on the
projected discounted cash flows considering a period offive years. The main assumptions include a pre-tax discount rate (based on

WACC) of D.47Y" and a perpetual growth rate of 5.00%. Other assumptions include the year-on-year growth rate of the revenue, gross

margin and the operating costs which has been determined by management based on past experience and continued investments in
capex in new 3D printing equipment. It was concluded that the value in use is significantly higher than the carrying value of the cash
generating unit of K€3,870. Based on the sensitivity analysis whele discount late would increase with l%, the value in use would still
be signihcantly highel than the carrying value of the cash generating units. Based on the sensitivity analysis that the flrve-year
projections would be l0% lowel or a perpetual gtowth late which is 2% lower, the value in use would still be significantly higher than
the car'rying value of the cash generating units.
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CGU Orthoviet','

The goodwill relates to the acquisition of Olthoview. The impairment test on the CGU Orthoview is based on the projected discounted

cash flows considering a period of 5 years .The main assumptions include a pre-tax discount rate (based on WACC) of 13 '27o/o and a

perpetual growth rate of 2.00Yo. Other assumptions include the year-on-year growth rate of the revenue, gross margin and the operating

costs which have been determined by management based on past experieuce. It was concluded that the value in use is higlrel than the

ca¡ying value of the cash generating unit of €9.70 million. Based on the sensitivily analysis lvhere discount rate rvould incr-ease with

1%, the value in use would still be higher than the carrying value of the cash generating unit. A reasonable change in the perperual

growtlr by 2r/o or overall I 0% lower five-year plojections still result in a value in use that is higlrer than the carrying value of the cash

generating uuit.

The Orfhoview business is being integrated further in the existing software business within our Materialise Medical segment. Synergies

that are expected fi.om joined pr.oduct lines are not taken into account in the current impairment t'eview as mauagement believes that

Orthoview can still be considered a sepal'ate cash generating unit in 201 8.

CGU ACTECH

The i¡rpaimrent tesr on the CGU ACTech is based on the projected discounted cash flows, considering a period of 5 years. The main

assnrnptions inc¡.rde a pre-tax discount rate (based on WACC) of 13.95Y" and a perpetual growth rate of I .57o/o. Otlter asstlmptiotrs

include the year-on-year growth late of the l'evenue, gross margin and the operating costs which have been detennined by tnanagenrent

based on past experience. It was concluded that the valne in use is higher than the carrying value of the cash generating unit of
€26.7 million. Based on the sensitivity analysis where discount rate wonld increase wi¡h lYo or other reasonable changes in the 5-year

projected cash flows (sucþ as lowel EBITDA) and peryetuat growth rate, the value in use would be higher than the car:rying value of the

cash generating unit.
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6 Intangible assets

The changes in the carrying value of the intangible assets can be presented as follows for the years 2018,2017 and 2016:

3l

age

t

Pâtents ând
licenses

Acquired
customers,
technology

and

Developed
technology

and
software

under
construction

2016

ofa

Transfer

Other

Additions

translation

At December 31 2017*

ofa

Transfer between accounts

749 3

Softrvare

718

490490

Totnl

188

364 366

;

t

t
E

I

IFRS

ii I lii

Other t7 l7

,lr, ; ,lqtrtutiitllt, irr, , iìì rll
,ir,{! t ll .{l)i1i:l¡)
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Prtents rnd
licenses

01:16 EST

Softrvrrc

Acquired
customers.
technology

and
backlogs

144

Dcvelopcd
tcch n ology

and
s o fhvarc

under
constru ction

r,3 l5

38
HTI\¡ ESS OC
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Total

(3,849)
(t,e54)

1 ,41

172

I
(5,388)
(3.822)

79
98
49

(t46)
(9,r 30)
(5,064)
1,060

23
8

(13,r 03)

26,326
28,600

9,7 65

9,657

5x

FORM 2O.F- IFRS XBRL

in 000€

Amortization
At January 1,2016

Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals
Transfet between accounts

Cun'ency h'anslation

Other
At December 31,2016

Depreciation charge for the year*
Disposals
Transfer between accounts
Cun'ency tlanslation
Other

At December 31,2017)'
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals
Transfer between accounts
Cun'ency translation
Other

At December 31, 2018
Net carrying value

At December, 3l 2018
At December, 31 2017*
At December 3l ,2016
AtJanuary, 12016

NYM

(1,471)
(s16)

J

(es8)
(sse)
239

(1,420)
(8re)

(2,042)
(6oe)

2

(117)
(2,766)

(14e)
854

(2,661)

26
I

(1,251 )
( 1,634)

77
98

4
(27e)

(2,985)
(2,3 r0)

206

1

8

(5,080)

(2,095)
( i,s7e)

45
250

(3,379)
(2,005)

(5,362)

20,2t7
22,216

5,50 r

7,r05

2

22

t,633
1,731
1,7 46
t,731

3,1 61

4,653
2,518

821

Patent and licenses include only the direct attributable extemal costs incurred in registering the patent and obtaining the license.

Softr¡,are relates to purchased software for interrral use only except for software development on certain application interfaces that were

alnrost fully funded by a thild party. Apart from the developed technology and softwal'e under cotlsttuction that was capitalized per end

of 2018 for the amou¡t of K€1,3 15, no other soffware development was capitalized in 2018 (2017: K€86, 2016: K€39). The remaining

amoltization peliod is 1.5 years for the nrain software ptttchases and 8.1 years for the rnain patents and licenses.

The 'Acquiled customers and technology' have been recognized as part of the acquisition of ACTech, E-Prototypy, OrthoView, and

Cenat (see Note 4). At Decenrber 31 ,2018, the remaining anrortization period for the acquired cttstorlers is 18.75 yeals for ACTech,

5.75 years for OrthoView, fully amortized for E-Prototypy and 6.25 years for Cenat (2017: 6.75 years for OrthoView, 1.00 years for
E-Prototypy and7.25 years for Cenat). At December 31,2018, the remaining amortization period fol the acquired technology of
ACTech, Orthoview and Cenat are 5.75 years, 1.75 years atrd 6.25 yeats, respectively.

The developed technology and software relate to two projects that meet the criteria for recognition as intemally developed intangible

asset (see also Note 2: significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions). Those assets are still being constlucted aud

consequently are not amoltized. The Group has performed an impairment analysis on those assets which resulted in no impairment. The

key assurnptions used are:

. Discount rate of l0%;

. Periods of cash flows: 6

. No perpetuity

The total aurortization chalge for20t8 is K€5,064 (2017*: K€3,822;2016: K€1,954). As frorn 2017 the amortization of intangible

assets fronr business cornbinations is nrainly included in the Iine net operating income of the consolidated itlcotne statement. We refer to

Note 2 for additional infomation.
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7 Property, plant & equipment

The changes in the carrying value of the propelly, plant & equipnrent can be presented as follows for the year' 201 8 and 201 7

Laud and
buildings

Plant and
equipment

l,eased

ll,24l
2,246

t36
(3e)

(42s)
5

1,1 39
14,303

792

Construction itr
progrcss

HTIV ESS OC

age

Total

75,889
30,5 r 7

20,230
(8e8)
(373)
(210)
203

125,358
18,557

(2,3 8s)
(5e8)
(189)

(80)
140,663

in 000€

Acquisition value
At January 1,2017

Additions
Acquiled frorn business conrbinations+
Disposals
Transfers
Cunency Translation
Other'

At December 31,2017*
Additions
Acquired from business combinations
Disposals
Transfers
Currency Translation
Other

At December 31, 2018
Depreciation
At January 1,2017

Depreciation charge for the year*
Disposals
Transfers
Cun'ency Translation
Other

At December 31,2017*
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals
Transfers
Currency Translation
Other

At December 31,2018
Net book value

At December 31,2018
At December 31,2017*
At January 1, 2017

assets

19,797
377

9,362
(3 1)

11,527
(1 85)
(663)

40,184
3,079

(ee)
2,728

(1 1e)

4
45,777

(5,093)
(83r)

15

521
31

8s3
(4,504)
( l,560)

26
( l8)
(1s)

(6,071)

39,706
35,680
t4,704

40,199
r 0,560
10,31 8

(r,046)
7,439
(l 18)
(23s)

67,117
9,476

( r ,882)
2,953

(2s)
(82)

17,557

44,250
39,951
17,936

(17)
(732)
(le)

4,652
17,334

414
2t8

(r8,9 r4)
88

(38)
3,754
s,2t0

(387)
(s,s47)

(26)
(2)

3,002

(307)

(307)

2,695
3,754
4,652

(22,263)
(5,s31)

842
(444)
166
64

(27,166)
(8,0 I 0)
2,102
(2s3)

(s3)
IJ

(33,307)

14,327

(3,470)
(2,327)

18

296
(1)

( l ,139)
(6,623)
(2,346)

6

514
8

(8,441)

5,886
7,680
1,77t

(30,826)
(8,689)

875
373
t96

(222)
(38,293)
(12,223)

2,134
243
(60)
73

(48,126)

92,537
87,065
45,063
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The c¡anges in the carrying valne of the property, plant and eqr.ripment can be presented as lollows for the year 2016:

Land and
buildings

19,719
8

19,797

Plant and
equiptrrent

33,408
4,916

Leased
assets

8,933
2,483

(6ee)
540
(20)

4
ll,24l

(2,478\
( r ,663)

669

Construction in
progress

2,114
7,899

N40
F|TM ESS OC

Totrl

64,t74
r5.306

(2,e73)
(607)

24
(3s)

75,889

(25,774)
(6,420)
I,2t2

tr'7
(e)
48

(30,826)

45,063
38,400

in 000€

Acquisition value
At January 1,2016

Additions
Acquiled frottl business cottlbinatiolls
Disposals
Transfers
Cunency Translation
Other

At December 3l,2016
Depreciation
At January 1,2016

Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals
Transfers
Currency Translation
Other

At December 31,2016
Net book value

At December 31,201.6
At January 1,2016

t7,936
r4,48t

4,652
z,r14

(2) (2,266)
4,1 80

(6)
(5,330)

(2st
)

69

(4,369)
(70e)

2

(l 7)

(5,093)

14,704
15,350

(3,470)

(3e)
40,199

(18,927)
(4,048)

541
tr7

6

48
(22,263\

4,652

2

7,77t
6,455

The investments in properry, plant & equipmenr in 2018 amounted to K€18,557 (2017: K€30,5 I7;2016: K€15,306) and mainly related

to new machines ancl installations in Belgium and Gemrany (K€10,747), land and buildings in Germany (KC2'491),IT equipnrent

(K€1,781) a¡d leased vehicles (KC7g2) The investr.nents h 2017 related to the building conshuctiotls iu Lettven and Poland

(K€.12,762), the invesrment into new machines and installations (acquired and leased - K€11,947) and the investment in motor vehicles

(K€1,444). The invest¡rents in 2016 related to the acquisition of land in Leuven and Poland (K€6,098) and the investment into new

machi¡es and installations (acquired and leased - K€8,254) and the investment itr computer equiplrletrt (K€890).

The Grogp realizec¡a net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment oiK€83 in 2018 (2017: a net loss of K€25; 2016: a net gain

ofK€(149)).

No impailment of property, plant and equipment was recorded.

Finance leases

The carrying valne of finance leases at Decernber 3 I , 20.l 8 was K€5,886 (2017 : K€7 ,680; 2016: K€7 ,771)- Finance leases are ìncluded

in the colnmn leased assets and nrainly relate to 3D printing rnachines with a carrying valtte of K€4,608 at December 31,2018 (2017:

K€6,613;2016:K€7,771)andfor:whichdepreciationofK€1,745wasrecordedin2018(2017: K€1,864;2016: K€1,663).Newhnance

leases in 2018 amount toK€792 of which K€792 r'elate to leased nrotot'vehicles (2017:K€1,596,2016:K€2,757).

Asse ts under cotts tt'uction

Both in 2018 and 2017 , rhe assets under construction mainly relate to machinery and installations in Belgium, Poland and Gerrnany. Per

end of 2018 the main asset under construction related to installations for our medical segment for an amount of K€937, located in

Belgium. In 2016 the assets uuder construction mainly included the building of the new ploduction and office facility in Belgium and

Poland (K€6,098) as well as the construction and upgrade of 3D plinting machines, tratrsferred to land & buildings and plant &
equipment, respectively, in 2017 .

Borrotving costs

In 2018, tro bomowiug costs have been capitalized (2017: K€87; 2016: K€0)-
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Pledges

Land and buildings (including buildings under consluction) with a carrying amount of K€27 ,319 (2017: K€28,526; 2016: K€ 12,594)

ale subject to pledges to secure several ofthe Group's bank loans. In addition, pledges have been given on cuffent and other fixed assets

with a total canying amount of K€3,533 (2017: K€l3,340;2016 K€0) (Note 24).
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8 Investments in joint ventures

The Group has one investment in the joint ventul'e RSPrint NV (Belgium).

The suulnarized financial information of RSPrint NV can be presented as follows:

in 000€ 2018 2ol7*^- 2016

Cument assets 850 1,256 1,643

Goodwill

ilr rrililrilil r r ililil illlillllJlrur]r ilrr ilrilr il

Non-current liabilities (1,096) (788)

(Share in the).ioint venture inconte and expenses (loss)

42
HTM ESS OC

ge

Profit (loss)' (876) (723) (1,208)

there are no discontinued operations
restated based on 20F amendment filing June 20 I 8

Totaf current assets include cash and cash equivalents for a total amount of K€l75 pet' December 3l, 2018 (2017: K€128; 2016: K€86).
Proht (loss) include total deprecations and amortization for a total amount of K€30 in 2018 (2017: K€50; 2016: K€34).

The movement of the carrying value of the joint venture is as follows:

in 000€

Share in loss

Additional investment 500

Transfer from receivables 444

Carrying value as of December 31, 2018

9 Inventories and contracts in progress

Inventories and contracts in progress include the following:

As of December 31,

in 000€ 2018 2017È 2016

'Work in 2,151 3 77 l 38

Contracts in

The amount of the inventory written-off as an expense isK€229 (2017: K€48; 2016: K€98).
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The gror,rp has contracts in progress and advances fionr custonrers. The total costs incnrred is K€547 and the profit recognized is K€282

as per Decer.nber' 3 l, 201 8. Advances wel'e received for the amount of K€370 wìth respect to contracts in progress per end of 2018

(2017: K€0; 2016: K€0). There are no retentions orÌtstanding.

l0 Other assets

O tlt e r no n-c ur re nl ass e ts

Other non-culrent assets include the fbllowing

As of Decetnber 3

3*

in 000€

Tax credits
Guarantees and deposits
Non-current receivable on joint venture
Non-li sted equi ly investrnents
Other
Total non-current assets 3,667

The non-cunent tax credits relate to tax credits that will be lealized over more than one year:.

The non-listed equify investments mainly consist of the investment in equily shares of the non-listed company Essentium Inc. The

Gloup lrolds a non-controlling interest of 5'/o in this company. This investment was irrevocably designated at fair value through OCI as

the Gloup considel's these investnlents to be stfateg¡c in uattu'e. We lefel toNote 3 andNote 20.

Other atrrenî as.sets

Other curent assets include the following:

As of December 3

20t 8 2017 20t 6

3,006
405

I,096
2,701

29
7,237

766
342

2,446
362
804

55 46
2,154

in 000€

Deferred charges

Tax credits
Accrued income
Other tax receivables
Other non-trade receivables
Total current assets

201 8 2017* 2016

2,046
185

958
2,286
1,461
6,936

2,02t
219
524

2,910
2,001
7,675

1,483
t76
666
604

1,552
4,491

The other tax receivables include Value Added Tax (VAT) receivables. The non-trade leceivables for the year ending December'3l,
201 8 include the indenrnihcation asset fol the amount of K€222 as refel'r'ed to in Note 4. Business Combinations I'elated to ACTech.

Also please note that a receivable related to factoring was accounted for under the non-trade receivables in the year ending

December 31 ,2016 (K€541). In the year ending December 31, 2018 this receivable lelated to factoling has been recorded under the

trade receivables for the anrount of K€445 (2017:K€.646).
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11 Trade receivables

The trade receivables include the following

in 000€

At 2017

At December 31 2017

Addition

Reversal

12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include the following:

in 000€

Cash

0l:15 EST 750783

As ofDecember 31,

2018 2017 2016

4+

NYM

age

Amortization receivables

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on payment terms of30 to 90 days.

As arDecember3l,20l8, trade receivables of an initial value of K€1,873 (2017: K€990;2016: K€5 ll)were impaired. hnpainnent is

accounted for under the other operating expenses. See below fot changes in the impairment of receivables.

in 000€

Addition

Reversal 70

1

2t9

As of December 3 l.
2018 2017 2016

9 64 t0,2679

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-tenn deposits are made for varying periods

belween one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and eam interest at the respective

short-term deposit rates.

In connection with the exercise of warrants payments have been received in2017 from employees for a total amount of K€209, not

convefted into shares before year-end. In line with regulations the amount ofK€209 was posted on a restricted bank account per

December 31,2017. There were no restrictions on cash at December 31, 2018 or 2016.
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l3 Equity

Share capital

Thesharecapital ofthepat'entcompanyMaterìaliseNVconsistsof52,890,76l ordinarynominativesharesatDecember3l,20lS
(2017:47,325,438;2016 41 ,325,438) with no nonrirral but palvalue of €0 058 in 2018 (2017: €0.058;2016: €0.058) fora total arrount
of K€3,050 at December 3 l, 20 I 8 (201 7 : K€2,7 29 ; 20 1 6 : Ke2,7 29)

MATERIALISE NV

in 000€. except share d¿t¡

Outstanding at January 1,2016
Transfel share capital to share preminnr
Capital increase in cash - public offering
Expenses dilectly attlibutable to public offering
Capital increase via exercise of watrants
Equity settled share-based payments expense

Outstanding on l)ecember 31, 2016
Outstanding at January L,2017

Transfer share capital to share premium
Capital increase in cash - public offerìng
Expenses di'ectly attributable to public offering
Capital increase via exelcise of wamants
Equily settled shat'e-based payments expense

Outstanding on December 1,2017
Outstanding at January 1, 2018

Tlansfel shale capital to shale ptemium
Capital increase in cash - public offering and private

placement
Expenses dilectly attlibutable to public offering
Capital increase via exercise ofwarrants
Equity settled share-based payments expense

Outstanding on December 31, 2018

I 0l:15 EST

Total
numbcr of
ordinary

shares

7,325,438

47,325,438
47,325,438

47,325,438
47,325,438

5,403,t25

750783 FIN 45 5*

OC

Totrl share-
premlunr

78,098

Totnl shlre-
holders'
capital

2,729

2,729
2,729

2,729
2,729

3t2

Totrl
numbcr of

fou ndcr
shates

921
79,019
79,019

820
79,839
79,839

59,575
(4,003)

593
633

136,637

162, I 98 9

52,890,761 3,050

The shareholder:s' capital increased by K€9 in 2018 as a result of the exercise of warrants outstatrding and fully vested. The nurnber of
new slrares issued was 162,198 at an average pnce of €3.72 pel share, including share premium. The shareholders' capital ftirther
increased in 2018 byK€3 l2 due to a capital increase in cash. The numberof new shares issuedwas 5,403,125 at an averageprice of
€l 1.08 per share, including share premrum.

Sltare prentiunr

Tn Belgium, the portion of the capital increase in excess of par value is typically allocated to share prenrirtm.

The carrying valne of the share premiunr is K€ 136,637 at December 31, 2018 (2017: K€79,839;2016: K€79,019). Tlre change in 201 8

is the result of:

. The capital ircrease in cash-public offering and plivate placement of K€59,575, compensated by the expenses directly
attributable to the public offerìng of K€(4,003);

. The capital increase via exercise of warrants of K€593; and

. the share-based payment expense ofK€633.

The change tn 2017 and 20 I 6 is the result of the share-based payment expense of K€820 and K€92 l, respectively

Reserves

The nature and purpose of the reserves is as follows
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in 000€
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age
FO NYM

As ofDecember 31,

20r8 2017* 201 6

deficit
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Based on the stahrtory result and after final result allocation approved by the annual shareholders nteeting the legat reserve is increased

by reserving 5% of the yeal'ly statutory profìt until the legal resewe leaches at least l 0% ofthe shareholders' capital. The legal reserrr'e

cannot be distríbr,rted to the shareholders.

The Group did not pay any dividend during 2018, 2017 and2016.

Non-contro lli ng interes t

Tlre non-controìling interest is zero per end ol-201 8,2017 and 2016. No non-controìling interest is lecognized for the l7% held by a

thild party in RapidFit+ as the amount was reclassified to a financial liabiliry.

RapidFit+

The Group has purchased a call option andwritten a put-option on the non-controlling interest in Rapidfit+. The call option is

accounted for in accordance with IFRS 9 and has an exelcise plice which is calculated according to a specified contt'actttal formula

based on the following palameters: invested capital, multiple of EBITDA minus net financial debt. Based on out'analysis the call option

r.enrairrs outof the money and as such thefairvalue is estinlated alzeroaf Decembet'31,2018. The call optioll is exercisable between

2015 and 2019.

The written put option has been recognized as a lìnancial liability and measured at the fair value of the rederrrption amount and anrottnts

to K€845 ar December 31, 2018 (2017: K€788; 2016 K€735). The undiscounted estimated redemption amount totals K€875 at

December 31, 2018 (2017:K€815; 2016: K€875). The redemptìon price has an exercise price according to a specified contractual

formula based on the following parameters: invested capital, multiple of EBITDA minus net financial debt. The initial recognition

resulted in a reclassification of K€264 from non-controlling intelest and K€64 from consolidated reserves. The parameter "invested

capital" of the contractual formula has been adjusted in Decernber 2014 to reflect the impact of the capital increase and the exercise

per.iod has been extended with one year'. As a result, the estimated redenrption amount of the wlitten put option has increased by K€213

which has been recorded in diminution of the consolidated leselves. The written put option is exercisable between 2017 and202l and i¡

is rnanagement's estimate that the put option will be exercised within 12 months. As such, the written put option is presented as an other

current liability.

In addition, RapidFit+ has issued 0 dilution rvarrants to the non-controlling interest which are exercisable upon occurrence of certain

specified events. The fair value of the dilution wanants is zero per end of 201 8 (2017: zero;2016: zero).
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l4 Share-based payment plans

Share-based paymenl plans of the parent

The changes ofthe year for the rvanant plans are as follows:

Outstanding at January l*
Granted
Forfeited / Cancelled
Exelcised

Outstanding at December 3l *
Exercisable at December 31

Outstanding at January I
Granted
Forfeited / Cancelled
Exercised

Outstanding at December 3l
Exercisable at December 31

1 750783 4t
HTIV ESS OC

2016

5å

201 8 2017

1,691,000

( r r 9,784)
( 1 02,8s6)

1,458,360

1,401,852
? 50 000

(70,8s2)

1,458,360
2,000

(6e, l 04)
(73,207)

1,319,049
252,793

1,681,000

* The Group's shale-based paynrent plans are all equity-settled except f'or the IPO walrants that have been granted to certain

eurployees in celtain countries due to legal lequirenrents rvhich ale cash-settled. The outstandirlg amount includes number of stock

appreciation dghts ("SARs") issued nndel cash-settled share-based payment plans.

The number of outstanding waüants has been adjusted to reflect the 1-to-4 stock split decided in June 2014. The 2013 warrant plan

gives a right to lour shares fol'each warrant, wheleas under all other warrant plans one warrant gives a right to one sltat'e. Fot'

presentation pulposes the tables reflect the numbel of shares the warrallts give right to acl'oss all plans.

Irr the course of October and Novernber 2017 paynrents were done by eurployees in counection with the exercise of 25,714 warrants,

representing 102,856 shares (2013 war-r-ant plan), for which the notary deed was only passed aftel year-end 2017. Therefore, the

payments had been kept on a restricted bank account of the Company as at Decetnber 31 , 2017 . The notary deed required for the capital

i¡crease in conuection with this exercise was passed befole the notary iu the course of March 2018. In addition, capital irrcreases were

passed before the notary in the coulse of December 2018 in connection with the exercises of wanants lelated to the 2013 watraut plau

(second p|øse;4,775 warrants representìng 19,100 shares) and the IPO warrant plan (40,242 warrants rept'esenting 40,242 shares).

Equity-settled sltare-based payntent plans

The Group has sevelal plans in place (2013 wal'rant plan, IPO wal-rallt plan and 2015 rvan'ant plan) which have similar tet'ms except for
the exercise price, except for the 2015 warrant plan.

2013 nlan

Each wamant gives the right to the holdel to four ordinary shares of the parent Company. The warants have a contractual term of ten

yeals andvestfor'25Yointhe foruth year;25o/o inthe fifth year;25%o in the sixthyear; and 25"/otnthe seventhyear. Wanants are

exercisable as from the rlonth after they have vested and in the subseqnent exercise periods. Thet'e are no cash settlement alternatives

and the Gloup does not have a plactice of cash settlement for these warrants. The wanants have a contractual tenn of ten years.

Under the 2013 wan'ant plan 301,096 warrants were effectively granted in October 2013 and 166,800 wal'rants were granted to certain

employees and to cerlain rnembers of our board of dilectors and senior management on November 28, 2013 with an exercise price

ranging frorn €7.86 to €8.54.

The stahrs of the 2013 wanant plan at December 3 I is as follows:

2018

320,640

( l,s00)
(re,100)
300,040

89,892

2017

435,096 439,896

(11,600) (4,800)
(1 02,8s6)
320,640 435,096

2016

With lespect to the wanants exercised, we refer to our comnrents above. Since the 2013 warrant plan prescribes that each wan'ant gives

right to four shares and onr table above presents the impact on tlte nutnber of shares, the actnal rernaining number of warrants as per

Decernber' 3 1, 201 8 equals 75,010.
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IPO warrant plan

Each warrant gives the right to the holder to one oldinary share of the parent Conrpany. The wal'r'ants have a contractual tel'nl of l0
yeat's and ve st fot' 25% in the fourth year; 25o/o in the fìfth yeay 25o/o in the sixth year and 25%o in the seventh year. Warants ale
exercisable as from the month after they have vested and in the subsequent exelcise periods. There are no cash settlement altematives
and the Gloup does ttot have a practice of cash settlement for these wan'ants. The tval'rants have a contlactual ternr of l0 yeals.

The Glotrp gran ted 979,898 warran ts in July 20 I 4 and 36, I 5 I warran ts in November 2014 in the con text of the initial public offelirrg to
the employees of the Group with an exercise plice of €8.81 ("IPO warrant plan"). The Gloup granted an additional 18,180 wanants to
employees in July 2015 undel the IPO wanant plan.

The stalus of the IPO wal'rant plarr at December 3l is as follou,s:

201 I 2017 2016

Outstanding at January I
Granted
Forfeited / Cancelled
Exercised

Outstanding at December 31
Exercisable at December 31

671,503 727,599 772,859

Warrant plan 2015

The boald of directots decided on December 18, 2015 on a new plan ("2015 waûant plan") by which it can grant up to 1,400,000
watrants to employees. Each wanant gives the r:ight to tl-re holder to one oldinary shale of the parent Company. The walTants vest for
I 0% on the second annivetsary ofthe glanting;20'/o onthe third anniversary ofthe gtanting;30Yo onthe foulth anniversary ofthe
granting; and,40Yo on the fifth anniversaty of the granting, unless otherwise decided by the board of directols or one or mole of its
t'epresentatives glanted powers thet'eto. Wanants ale exercisable only after they have vested and only during a period of (i) four weeks
following the publication of tlre results olthe palent Cornpany of the second and fourth qualter, or (ii) if no cluarterly results are
publistred, duling the month Mat'ch and the month September of every year. There are no cash settlement alternatives and the Group
does not lrave a practice of cash settlement for these warrants. The warlants have a temr of ten years.

The Group gr:anted 350,000 warrants in July 2016 to the en.rployees of the Group with an exelcise price of €6.45. The Group granted
2,000 warrants to an employee in May 2018 with an exercise price of €10.08

The starus of the 2015 wanant plan at December'31 is as follows:

2018 2017 2016

6*

NYN¡

(42,209)
(40,242)
589.052
ll4,0l2

(s6,096)

671,503

(4s,260)

727,599

Outstanding at January I
Glanted
Forfeited / Cancelled
Exelcised

Outstanding at December 31
Exercisable at December 31

329,000
2,000

(s,800)

325,200
32,700

350,000

(21,000)

329,000

350,000

350,000

Fair value

The fair value of the wan'ants is estimated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the tenns
and conditìons upon which the warrants were granted.

The following table provides the input to the Black-Scholes model for the 2013 warrant plan, IPO wanant plan and 2015 wanant plan:
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Retum dividend
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected life
Exercise price (in €)
Stock price (in €)
Fair value SAR (in €)

Donne Financial 1 750783 FIN 49
HTM ESS OC

age

NY[/

20t 5
(Scpt I 6)

0%
47%

0.24%
4.30
6.45
6.42
2.41

z0t 5

(Nov)

0%
À10/

l.l7o/o
5.50
8.8l
8.08

3.30

tPo 20t4
(Nov)

0%
s0%

l.12Vo
5.50
8.81
8.67
3.94

tPo 20t¡
(Junc)

0%
46%

1.70%
s.50
8.81

8.81

3.83

201 3
(Dec) t

0%
s0%

2.56%
5.50
8.54

18.09
t2.23

20r3
(Oct) *

0%
53%

2.439/a

5.50
7.86

18.09
12.77

(*) Exercise price, stock pdce and fair value are not adjusted for the I to 4 stock-split compteted in June 2014.

The above input lol the Black-Scholes nrodel have beeu deternrined based on the tbllowing:

' The dividend return is estimated by refet'ence to the historical dividend payment of the Gloup. Currently, this is estimated to
be zero as no dividend have been paid since inception;

' Expected volatility is estimated based on the avelage annualized votatility of the volatility of the Group's stock (until
Septenrber 2016: of a numbel'of quoted peers in the 3D printìng industry and the volatilily of the Group's stock);

' Risk-liee iuterest late is based on the iutelest rate applicable fot the l0Y Belgiarr governnlent bond at the grant date;

' Estimated life of the wanant is determined to be until the ñrst exercise period which is typically the month aftet vesting; and

' Fail value of the shares is determined based on the shale price of the Group on Nasdaq at the date of valuation. For the grants
prìor to the initial public offering, the fair value ofthe shares was estirnated based on a discounted cash flow nrodel with
3-year cash flow projections aud a multiple of EBITDA deternrined based on a number of quoted peers in the 3D printing
industry.

The expense arising from share-based payment transactions for the warrants plans mentioned above was K€640 in 2018 (2017: K€819;
2016:K€921).

The weighted avetage remaining estimated life of the warrants outstanding as of December 31, 201 8 is 5.95 years (201 7: 6,92 years;
2016: 4.38 years). The weighted average fair value for the warrants outstanding at the end of 201 8 was €5.62 (2017 €.5.60; 2016:
€6.01). The weighted average exercise price for the warrants outstanding at the end of 20,l 8 was €7.99 (2017: €8.05; 201 6: €8.06).

Caslt-settled share-based pattntent pla ns

The Group has issued 215,688 SARs in Jnly 2014 towards certain ernployees in certain conntries due to legal requilernents with sinrilar
ternrs and conditions as the IPO warrant plan except that the SAR will be settled in cash. The exercise price of the SAR is €8.81.

The status of this plan is as follows:

Outstanding at January I
Granted
Forfeited / Cancelled
Exercised

Outstanding at December 31
Exercisable at December 3l

20t I
137,217

(r 9,s95)
( l 3,86s)
103,757

16,199

(3 l,088)

137,217

(20,792)

168,305

2017 2016

16S^305 1S9il09?

The SAR plan grants the bearer the right to a cash payment equal to the difference between the exercise price and the stock price at the
exercise date. This plan is considered a cash settled shared based payment and is as such recorded as liability (see Note l6).

The SAR's have a contractual ten.n of ten years and vest for25o/o in the fourth year;25Yo in the fifth year;25o/o in the sixth year and
25Y" in the seventh year. SAR's are exercisable as from the month after they have vested and in the subsequent exercise periods.

The fail value of the SAR is estirnated at each reporling date using the Black-scholes option plicing rnodel, taking ilrto account the
telms and conditions upon which the walrants wele granted.
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The following table lists the input used for the Black-Scholes model:

Stock

2018 2017 2016

49% 49% s0%

t.25 2.25 3.25

17.49 10.61 7.30

The expense arising from share-based payment transactions for the SAR's plan was K€435 in 2018 (2017:K€204;2016: K€46). The
canying value of the liability at December 31, 2018 amounts to K€786 (2017: K€351; 2016:K€147). The total intrinsic value of the
liability for wanants cru'rently exercisable was K€0 at December 31, 2018, 2017 and2016.

Share-based paynrent plans of RapidF it+

The subsidiary RapidFit+ has issued a warrant plan on August 23,2013 where a maximum of 300 wartants can be offered to
management with an exercise price of €553.92. In January 2014, a total of 199 warrants were granted and accepted.

The changes for the year for the RapidFit+ wurtun, Otun are as follows:

2016

Granted

201
,ll lJ¡ìtlìùf-:lìi\ r lrfli.r t.t)t)/ ti!),j,

Exercised
lrìì Urlrillt¡rÍ|ir rli I l,lrlrlrltt i,rrl, :iir ili.{)l) ,lr9}J lrlJlr

Exercisable at December 31

The following table lists the input to the Black-scholes model for the RapidFit+ wrtma Ot*,

50%

life 5.5

Fair value option 262.7

The expense arising from share-based payment transactions for RapidFit+ warrant plan was K€7 in 2018 (2017: K€I0; 2016: K€I0)

F_50

il l.

l¡riiìl rl.i:r riL iiiriìrl.li;; l::rìr1



ilrilililililrrililtiluillll^l[lillf ilt ilil il]ilil ]t
MATERIATISE NV Donnell Financial

Rt

l5 Loans and borrorvings

The loans and bon'owings include the following:

1 750783 FIN 51 7*

ge 1

NY[/ OC

As of December 3l
in 000€

K€28,000 acquisition bank loan

K€18,000 seculed bank loans
K€10,000 EIB bank loan
K€12,300 bank loans ACTech
K€8,750 other facility loans
Bank investment loans-top 20 outstanding
Bank investment loans----other
Firrancial lease agreemelrts
Instinrtional loan
Convertible bonds
Related party loan
Total loans and borrowings

Culrent
Non-Cnrrent

2018 2017 2016

24,576
17,739
10,000
t2,300
4,299

23,801

3,808
6,809
1,492
1,000

2t4
106,038

13,598
92,440

27,513
17,575 6,404

9,247
4,982

2t,441
2,289
9,164
1,105
1,000

241
94,557
12,769
8l ,788

5,4t1
9,467
) o)1
7,395

936
r,000

266
33,806

5 5ìq
28,267

K€28,000 Acquisition loan (halance K€24,576 per Decentber 3 l, 20 1 8)

This bank loan has been concluded in October'2017 to finance the acquisition of ACTech. The loan includes aportion of K€18,000
reimbursable monthly during seven years, and a bullet portion of K€10,000, reimbursable at once in October 2024.The intelest rate is
fixed for the dulation of the loan, and amouuts to I .IYo on average for both portions. The bank loans are secured with a busiuess pledge
mandate, a share pledge on Materialise Germany GMBH, and debt covenants.

K€18,000 secured bank loans

The K€18,000 loan has been coucluded in20l6 in lwo agreenrents to finance tlre construction of new facilities in Leuven (Belgium) and
in Poland, both rnahrring in2032. The agreement lor the Belgian facility financing amounts to K€12,000 (drawn per end 2018:
K€.11,739; per end 2017: K€l1,575), and with reimburserxents only starting in December 2022. The agreerrent for the Polìsh facility
financing amounts to K€6,000 (fully drawn per end of 2017), and with reirnbursements only starling in June 2019. The average interest
rate of both agreements arnottnts to 1.2%o. The bank loan is secured with a mortgage nrandate on the Belgian facility buildings.

K€10,000 EIB bank loan

On December'20,2017 the Group entered into a finance contlact with the European Investment Bank, or EIB, to finance future research
and development programs. As pafi of a fil'st tranche, an amount of K€10,000 was drawn over the course of 2018. The agreement
foresees a two-yeal' loan teimbursement period. Loans under the contract are made at a fixed rate, based on the Euribor late at the time
of the borrowing, plus a variable margin. The malgin is initially equal to I .86% and va¡ies ir fliirction of cerlain EBITDA levels and
debt ratios. The contract contains customaly securiry, covenants and undetlakings.

K€I2,300 bank loans

In March 2018, three bank loans originating from the acquired ACTech Gtoup were refìnanced entirely for the amount of K€9,300,
witlr adjttsted maturity to May 2025 and lÌrst reirnbnrsements in August 2020. The interest rate has been fixed at approximately 1.6%",

and pledges including a K€4,650 lnortgage on ACTech's facilities and a gnarantee of Matelialise NV. In addition, a new investurent
credit of K€3,000 was obtained in June 2018, repayable as flom January 2019 and with a fixed interest rate of 1.5Yo.

K€8,750 - Otlter/hcility loans

Three facility loans were contracted in 2005, 2006 and2012 for the constnrction of Leuven office and production facilities (K€2,000,
K€300 and K€5,000, respectively) and another loau for the Czech Republic offices ir 2008 (K€ 1,750). The balance ofthe four loans
amounts ro K€4,299 pel December 31, 2018. All loans have a repayment schedule of 15 years and interest l'ates are fixed between 4.3%
and, 5.4/o for the four loans.
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MisceIIaneous investntent Ioans

The 20 largest ofthese loans outstanding pel Decenrber 3 l, 2018 anrount to a balance ofK€23,801. They have been agreed in2017,
2016 and in the years before to finance various investments in machinery, pdnters, equipment, and software tools. The vast majority of
the loans have a reimbursement per:iod over seven years, and are at fixed interest rates with weighted average below 1%.

Finance lease obligations t't,itlt third parties

The Group has several finance lease obligations mainly r.vith financial institutions and related to the financing of buildings and various
other items of plant and equipment such as 3D printers. Per Dece¡nber 3l , 2018 the balance of these financial lease agreenrents amounts
to K€6,809, and are mostly at fixed interest lates with weighted average belorv 2%.

K€2, 000 i ns ti tu I ional loan

This loan was contracted with a governtnental institution in Genrany to finance the production operations of Matelialise Genlany for a
maxitrttm arl'rount of K€2,000. The loan is repayable over a four year period, starting as of Septernb er 2017 with a fixed intelest rate of
0.25Yo payable per quafter. Pet' December 31, 2018 K€|,942 has been dr-awn with an outstanding balance of K€.I,492.

K€l,000 convertible bond with related paftt,

We isstred, on October' 28,2013,1,000 convertible bonds with a lelated pafiy for a total amount of K€I,000. The bonds have been ftrlly
subscribed by a nrember of our senior management.

The conditions of the convertible bond can be sumnrarized as follows:

. Number of convertible bonds: 1,000

. Nominal value per bond: €1,000

. Contlactual life: 7 years

. Interest: 3.7Yo per year

. Conversion period: from January l, 2017 until maturity

. Conveftion price: €1.97 per share

The maximum number of oldinary shares that can be issued upon conversion is 508,904.

The Group has estimated the fair value of a similal liabiliry however without any conversion option by reference to a number of quoted
peers in Belgir.tm. The fair value was estimated at K€907. Upon initial recognition, an amount of K€93 was recognized in consolidated
reserves reflecting the fair value ofthe conversion option.

Finance lea,se obligations with related parties

In October 2001, we entered into a finance lease agreement with Ailanthus NV to lease land and a portion of a new production building
The lease had a tetm of 15 years and included a purchase option for the land and the building. We determined that this lease was a
finance lease because (i) the pwchase option is assumed to be significantly lower than the fair value of the land and building and (ii) it
was very likely at inception of the lease that we would exercise our purchase option. The amounts outstanding as of December 31, 2018
is K€0 (2017: K€0; 2016: K€74). The interest expense for the year 2018 is K€0 (2017: K€0; 2016: K€4). The term of the lease expired
on September 20,2016 and we exercised a purchase option in respect of the land and building. The notary deed transferring the land
and building was completed in the course of 2017.

Related party loan

Ailanthus NV has granted us one other loan at fixed interest rate of 4.23o/o that matures in 2025. The purpose of the loan is to finance
tlre purchase of a building in France. The amounts outstanding as of December 31, 2018 is K€214 (2017:K€241;2016: K€266). The
interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2018 is K€l0 (2017: K€1 1; 2016: K€ l2).
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For the year ended December 3l
2018 2017 2016

t9 69

792 2,906

106,038 94,557 33,906

FORM

Changes of liabilities þr financing actívities :

The following table presents the changes of the liabilities for financing activities:

in 000€

Ptoceeds from loans &

New hnance leases

Loans from business combination

At December 31,

F-53

0c

age

' , ljt,ltLrii ; I !;tl lrrii{lxí Ìì i jiliil

,ÍI lll¡X.r1¡¡. Ili ;rtr1lir]I i(l,l''rrl¡jr]



I 01:16

lil ilililililII ililil ilt lililllilttililil

FORM 20.F. IFRS XBRt

l6 Other non-current liabilities

The other non-current liabilities consist of the following:

in 000€

FIN 54 5*

age

As ofDecember 31,
2018 2rn 2016

considetation

Other

648 909

786 359 160

'We refer to Note l3 for a description of the written-put options RapidFit+.

With respect to the contingent consideration, related to the CENAT acquisition, we refer to Note 4 on business combinations. At
Decetnbet'31,2018 only a consideration of K€450 renrains, recorded under the other current liabilities (seeNote l9). Per end of 2017
and2016 the non-current part of the CENAT contingent consideration arnounted to K€648 and K€909, respectively.

The other items in the above table include a liability of K€786 pet December 3 I , 20 I 8 related to the cash settled shared based payment
plan as referred to in Note 14 (2017: K€351; 2016:K€147).

The impact of the accounting treatment of the Belgian contribution plans with a minimal guarantee is not material as only a limited
number ofpeople can benefit. No provisions have been recognized as ofDecernber 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016. As such, no further
disclosures have been provided.

17 Tax payables

The tax payables amount to K€2,3 I 3 as per December 3 I , 201 8 (2017*: K€2,023; 2016: K€926) and is mainly related to rhe tax
payables of the entities located in Germany.
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l8 Deferred income

Defered income consists of the following:

in 000€

HTMESS OC

e

As of December 31

2018 2017* 2016

Finan cial

I )); lilr¡r L'L! r rt[ilrl]r ìJ1,.)[I]ì jttr(.I-: .:-i. lliq:lrìIr,1 "ti¡ili,,, ril,,,'.. ,r1ó,,1ÂltL,'

Defemed

Other

fees

r' 19

134

58

rtrùl l: ílll, rill Ir rr . ii:ir,. lr , '/a¡tü i
current 23 195 1 791 l7

The deferred maintenance and license consist of maintenance fees paid up-front which ale deferred and amortized over the maintenance
petiod. The deferred (project) fees consist of one-time and advance payments received which are deferred in accordance with the
revenue accounting policies. The deferred govenlment grants are recognized as income under "other operating income".

We refer to Note 22.1.2 for more detail on the contract liabilities.
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l9 Other current liabilities

Other cument liabilities include the following:

in 000€

750783 FIN 56 3*

NYM

e

As of December 3l
201 8 2017 2016
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"'),)'lt| 

|xi/,
Non-income tax 175 694

Advances received 713 870 581

Total 15,342 13,496 10,147

The other cuffent liabilities as per December' 31, 2018 include an amount of K€450 (2017: K€257; 2016: K€0) payable in connection
with the CENAT business combination (see also Note 4 and Note 16), and a payable for the amount of K€845 (2017: K€0; 2016: K€0)
in connection with the written-put options RapidFit+ (see also Note l3 and Note 16).

The non-income tax payables mainly relate to VAT payables and payroll taxes.
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i¡ 000€

Financial assets
Debt instruments measured at amortizcd cost

Trade receivables (cun ent)
Other hnancial assets (non-current)
Other cul'r'ent non-tl'ade receivables
Cash & cash equivalents

Totaì debt instruments
Financial assets at lair valuc through profìt or loss

Derivatives
Total financial asscts measured at fair value
Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI

Non-listed equity rnvestments
Total Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI

750783 57

l-jÏM ESS OC

age

Fair value

3*
FORM 20- S XBRL NYN/

20 Fair value

Financial assels

The carryingvalue and fairvalue ofthe financial assets as ofDecenrber 31,2018, 2017 and 2016 can beplesented as of:

value
20t8 2n17" 2016 2018 2017* 2016

3 6,891
1,530
1,461

I 15,506
155,388

2,701
2,701

35,582
r,221
2,001

43,17 5

8l,g7g

27,479
388

|,552
55,912
85,331

36,891
I,530
1,461

115,506
155,388

35,s82
1,221

2,001
43,t7 5
81,979

27,479
388

1.552
55,912
85,331

117

117
2t8
218

rl7
tt7

2t8
218

2,701
2,701

The fair value of the financial assets has been detennined on the basis of the tbtlowing methods and assumptions:

' The carrying valtte of the cash and cash equivalents and the current receivables approximate their fair valne due to their short
tenr character;

' The fair value ofthe derivatives has been deternrined based on a malk-to-market analysis prepared by the bank based on
observable market inputs (level 2 inputs);

' Other cun'ent non-trade receivables ale being evaluated on the basis oftheil credit risk and interest late. Their.fair-value is
not different fronr their calrying value on December. 3l ,2018,201i and 2016

' The non-listed equity investrtrents, rnainly representing the investntent in Essentium Inc, are lneasured at fair value. As of
Decelrber 31 ,2018, nranagement considers that currently the cost is an appropriate estimate of fair value (level 2 input) as
long as there is no significant capital increase that wolrld give a reliable indication of the fair valle of the investment. This
was becanse of the lollowings reasons:

. Essentium Inc is a nonJisted entiry;

' The Gr:oup only has an insigniltcant interest in Essentium Inc (5Yo of the shares);

' The Group has no representatives in the Board of Directors of Essentiunr Inc;

' Instlfficient more recent information is available to rneasule fail vah.re; and

. The investment was completed close to year-end.

F ina nc ia I I iab il itie.s

The carrying valtte and fair value of the fi nancial liabilities as of December 3 1, 201 8, 2017 and 2016 can be pr.esented as of:

value Fair value
in 000€

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Loans & Bon'owings
Trade payables
Other liabilities

Total financial liabilÍties measured at amortized cost
Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Contingent consideration
Cash settled shale based paynleuts
tWritten put option on NCI
Delivatives

2018 2017* 2016 2018 2017* 2016

106,038
18,667

778
125,483

450
786
845
194

94,s57
15,670

1,133
111,360

905
351

788
8

33,806
13,400

647
47,853

909
147

735

105,027
18,667

778
124,472

450
786
845
194

95,351
15,670

1,r33
ll2,l54

905
351

788
8

34,619
13,400

647
48,666

909
147

735
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The fàir valne of the tìnancial liabilities has been determined on the basis of the following methods and assumptions:

' The carrying valtte of cttrrent liabilities approximates their fair value due to the short term character of these instmments;

Loans aud bon-owings are evaluated based on theil interest rates and nraturity date. Most interest bealing debts have fixed
interest rates and their fail value is subject to changes in interest rates and individual creditworthiness. The interest-fi'ee loans
have alleady been recognized initially at fair value based on a plesent value technique (level 2 inputs) and are subsequently
measured at amortized cost. Their carrying value approximates theit'fair value;

The fair value of the der-ivatives has been detemined based on a malkt-to-market analysis plepared by the bank based on
obselvatable nrarketinplrts (level 2 inputs);

The fail valtte ofthe written put option on non-controlling interest has been deterrnined based on the present value ofthe
redenrption amount (level 3 inputs); and

The fàir value ofthe (contingent) consideration has been deternriued based on the latest long-term business plans ofthe
Cenat business (level 3 inputs). Note that the consideration is no longer contingent as per end 20 1 8.

Fait'value ltierarchy

The Gloup uses the follolving hierarchy for detemrining and disclosing the fair value of tinancial instruurents by valuation technic¡ue:

' Level l: quoted (unadjusted) plices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;

' Level 2: othel techniques for which all inputs which have a signihcant effect on the recorded fair value ale observable, either
directly or indilectly; and

' Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable
market data.

Tlre Gloup has the following financial instruments carried at fair value in the statement of financial position on December' 3l ,2018,
2017 and 2016: the derivatives related to iutel'est rate and foreign cuffency swaps as included in the above tables, a call option and
written put option orr non-controlling interest, the (contingent) consideration for the acquisition of Cenat and the non-listed equity
lnvestments.

' The fair value of the written put option is determined based on the plesent value of the redenrption amount and is considered
level 3. The redemption amoì.lnt is a fomula (see Note 13) and is estirnated on histolical hnancial hgures. The impact on the
income statement is K€57 during 2018 (2017:K€53;2016: K€50).

' The fair value of the call option is estimated at zero as the call option is out of the money based on our analysis (see Note
l3).

' The fair value of the (contingent) consideration is based on the agreement that was signed with the former shareholders on
Decetnber 24,2018 determining that the only rernaining and final consideration to be paid amounts to K€450. The final
consideration was paid on January 21,2019. A lair value adjushnent was recognized in 2018 fol the amount of K€192
recorded under the other operating income (we also refer to Note 4).

' The fail value of the non-listed equity investments is currently estimated as its cost because of the reasons explained above.
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2l Segment information

For ntatragetlent purposes, the Gl'oup is olganized into segments based on theil products, sewices and industry arrd has the following
tll'ee repoltable segments:

' The Materialise Medical segnlent, rvhich develops and delivels r.neclical sofrware soiutions, medical devices and other relatecl
plodrrcts and ser-vices.

' The Materialise Manulacturing segment, which delivers 3D printed products and related services; and

' The Materialise Software segnìent, which develops and clelivers additive mannfacftu'ing software solntions and related

The tneasttl'ernent pl'inciples used by the Group in pleparing this segnrent lepolting are also the basis for segment performance
assessrnent and irre in conforrnity with IFRS. The Chief Executive Officer of the Group acts as the chief opelating decision r¡aker. As a
perlortttarrce indicator, the chíef operating decision nraker controls the perlbrnrar.rce lry the Group's revenue and EBITDA. EBTTDA is

defined by the Group as net plofit plus finance expenses, less financial income plns income taxes, plus depleciation, amortizatìon and
llnpaument.

The fblÌowing table sumrnalizes the segrÌ'ìent tepolting for each of the repoltable periods ending Decenrber'31. Corpolate resealch and
developnrent, headqualters' function, financing and incorne taxes ale rnanrgcd on a Group basis and are not allocated to opelating
segtnents. As lranagetrent's conh'olling instlr-llnent is rnainly revenne-based, the leporting infonration does not include assets and
liabilities by segment and is as such not available per segnent.

OCNYM

2

Materialisc
Sofhvare

ùIaterialise
ùIedical

Matcrialise
M¡nulacturitrg

Totâl
segmentsin 000€

For the year ended December 31, 2018
Revenues
Segment EBITDA
Segnrent EBITDA %
For the year ended December 31,2017
Revenues
Segment EBITDA*
Segment EBITDA %
For the year ended December 31, 201 6
Revennes
Segment EBITDA
Segrnent EBITDA %

Unallocated Consolidated

13937,374
I 1,536

30.9%

35,770
t3,926

38.9o/o

30,122
I 0,130

33.6"/,

\) )<)
10,252

19.60/0

42,841
4,400

103%

37,91 0

894
2.4%

94,956
t 0,785

lt 4%

63.1t2
4,439

7.0%

46,406
3,848

8.3%

I 84,5 82

32,573
17.6%

142,323

22,765
\60%

I 14,438

t4,872
13.0o/o

(t0,t22)

250
(e,7e7)

39
(6.3e 1)

184,721

22,451

t42,573
12,968

9.1%

I14,417
8,48 r

The segrrent EBITDA is leconciled with the consolidated net profit (loss) for the year as follov/s:

For the year ended Dccenrber 31,
201 I 2017*in 000€

Segment EBITDA
Depreciation, amofiization and impairment
Corporate research and development
Corporate headquarter costs
Other operating income (expense)

Operating (loss) prolit
Financial expenses
Financial income
Income taxes
Share in loss ofjoint venhrre

Net Qoss) profit

32,573
(17,287)

( 1,9r 3)
( l 0,3s8)

2,r49
5,164

(4,864)
3,627
(42s)
(47 s)

3,027

22,765
(t2,576)
(2,017)
(e,6e0)
I,910

392
(4,728)
3,210
(s22)
(46e)

(2,117)

2016

14,872
(8,374)
(t,673)
(8,646)
3,928

107
(2,437)
2,039

(1,710)
( l ,018)
(3,019)

The Group has no customers with individual sales lalger than 10% of the total revenue in 2018 (2017: none; 2016: none).

Enti ty-wide discl osures

We t'efet'to the Note 22.1 fot'the revenue by geographical area, based on location of the custonrer'. The total revenue realized in the
country of domicile (Belgium) in 2018 amounts to K€9,350 (2017: K€8,145;2016 K€7,534).
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The tota'l non-current assets, other than financial instnrnrents, deferred tax assets, by geographical area is as follows:

As ofDecember 31,
in 000€ 2018 2017* 2016

60
HTfuI ESS OC

age

Americas other than USA 62 29 35

Belgium 48,873 46,576 34,074

Total 136,354 133,217 63,689

The totals ol tlre above table includes goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant & equipment as disclosed in the consolidated
statements of flnancial position.

F-60



ilt ilililililIIililil ilt ilililililililt
MAT NV D onn el Financial

FORM zO-F- IFRS XBRt

in 000€

Geographical markets
United States of Arnelica (USA)
Americas other than USA
Eulope (without BelgiLrrn) & Afi'ica
Belgium
Asia Pacific
Total revenue from contracts with customers
Type of goods or service
Software revenue (n on-medical)
Soffware revellue (medical)
Medical devices and selices
Prototyping
End parts production
Complex metal parts production (ACTech)
Other
Total revenue from contracts with customers
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods/Services transferred at a point in time
Goods/Services transferred over time
Total revenue from contracts with customers

17:28 EST

Nlltcrialisc
Nlctlicrl

l\ faterirlise
i\ I I nu lhctu ling

750783 61

HT[/ ESS OC

Unallocnted Consolidatcd

EGV khandOa 5*

22 Income and expenses

22.1 Revenue

Theeff'ectof initiallyapplyingIFRS l5ontheGroup'srevenllefi'orncontractswithcustonrelsisdescribedinNote2.Duetothe
transition method chosen in applying IFRS 15, conrpalative infomration has not been lestated to reflect the new lequirenrents.

22,1.1 Disaggrcgated revenue information

ì\laterirlise
Solïrrare

8,804
193

17,026
155

ll,l96
37,374

37,374

20,326
t7,048
37,374

Totrl
segments

23,940
1,404

19,073
t,824
6,01 r

<t t<t

39,682
12,570
<) 'r<',

9,439
t01

74,852
7,364
3,200

94,956

90,614
4,342

94,956

42,t83
1,698

I 10,95 I
9,343

20,407
184,582

150,622

33,960
184,582

42,2t7
r,700

l I 1,028
9,350

20,426
184,721

150,761
33,960

184,721

34
2

77
a

l9
139

t7,045
35,207

27 5qg

23,9t9
43,438

37,374 52,252 94,956 184,582

37,374
17,045
35,207
27 5qq

23,919
43,438

37,374
17,045
35,207
27,599
23,919
43,438

139
184,721

t39
139

139

139

The revenue per type of good or selice irrch-rding the plevious years is as follows

in 000€

Software revenue (non-medical)
Software revenue (nredical)
Medical devices and services
Plototyping
End parts productior
Complex metal parts production (ACTech)
Other
Total

For the year ended Dcceml¡er 3l
2018 2017 2Dt6

37,374
r7,045
35,207
27,599
23,919
43,438

139
184,721

35,770
15,619
)1 'r)')
28,423
25,324

q 965

250
142,573

30,122
13,404
24,506
27,568
18,838

39
1I4,477

22.7.2 C ontr act baì an ces

The following table provides infornlation about receivables, contracts in progress (contract assets) and defened income (contl'act
liabilities) from contracts with customers.
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in 000€

Trade receivables, included in 'trade and other receívables'
Contract assets / contracts in progress
Contract liabilities / deferred income
Total

in 000€

Purchase ofgoods and services
Arnortization and depreciation
Payroll expenses
Other expenses
Total

22.3 Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses include the following selected information:

in 000€

Purchase ofgoods and services
Arnortization and depreci ation
Payroll expenses
Other
Total

91 750783 FIN 62
HTÍV ESS OC

ge

As of Deccmber 31.
201 8

38,764
829

27,444
67,037

2017

36,572
1,266

23,661
61,499

We lefer to note l8 for a detail of the defered income and Note 2 for- a detail on the cumulative catch-up adjustment on initial
application of TFRS 15.

The Glot4t has recognized K€ 1 9,20 I revenue in 20 I 8 for con tract liabilities r-ecognized at Janualy I , 20 I 8 and rednced revenne f-or
K€96 r'elated to pet'fornrance obligations that were (partially) satisfied in prior yeals. Note l8 include split of the deferred income in
culrent alld non-current. Non-cunent deferred income, representing mainly maintenance contracts with terms more than one year and
cefiain contl'acts with up-front fees which are allocated to perforrnance obligations that will be satisfied over nìore than one year, rn¿ry
be recognized as revenue between one to three years.

The relation between the tinring of satislaction of the pelfonlance obligations and the tirning of billing resr,rlting in contract assets and
liabilities is as fbllows:

' Maintenance selices: maintenance services ar:e rypically billed at the beginning of the maintenance period resulting in
deferred incotne that is recognized on a stlaightline basis over the maintenance peliod.

' Soltwale licenses: certain software licenses rnay have been billed prior to the delivery of the software key resulting in a
detèrred income balance.

' Celtain agreements in the nredícal segment include up-front fees such as step-in fees ol' milestoue payments which are billed
at inception of the contract but which are allocated to performance obligations which are satisfied at a later tinre in the
contract tenll or which have not been recognized considering the revenue contraint (i.e. nray have to be credited when
customer achieves certain volume targets). In addition, cerlain contracts include plepaid fees for volume "Plan Only"
pttrcltases for which the purchased seryices are only delivered dnring a one year period. Those fees rest¡lt in defened inconre
which are recognized as revenue wlren sewices/products are delivered and revenue is not constrainted.

' Certain development seruices are satisfied while the selices can only billed at certain ple-defined points iu time or when the
selices are fully satisfied resulting il contracts in progress / contract assets.

22.2 Cost of sales

Cost of sales inclLrde the following selected information

For the year ended December 3l
2018 2017* 2016pe¡4 €+3s0) tzsilq)
(e,e10) (7,s60) (s,007)

(33,036) (20,806) (16,161)
(23e) (r 06) (164)

(82,299) (62,952) (46,706)

For the year ended December 3l
2018

t¡¡sOt
(830)

(t7,935)
(61)

(22,416)

2017 2016

t¡¡+ol ic.jf1)
(686) (478)

(16,0s4) (13,e85)
(7e) (42)

(19,959) (17,682)

" EGV mandbOn
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22.4 Sales and marketing expenses

Sales and marketing expenses include the following selected information

in 000€

Other

22.5 General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses include the following selected information

iu 000€

750783 FIN 63 4*

For the year ended December 3l

Amoftization and depreciation (725) (505) (563)

2018 2Il7* 2016

18) (220)

For the year ended December 3l
2018 2017* 2016

Arnortization and 76t

Other

22.6 Net other operating income

The net other operating income can be detailed as follows:

in 000€

For the year ended December 3l
2018 2017* 2016

Amortization allocation

constmctlon

Tax Credits

16 123 t2

706 899 741

Personnel related income r68

Total 3,771 4,541 6,212

The Company has received govemment grants from the Belgian federal and regional govemments and from the European Community
in the forms of glants linked to certain of its research and development programs and reduced payroll taxes.

Any government gmnts recognized as income do not have any unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attached to them.

The Group has changed its accounting policy with respect to the amortization expense related to the fair value adjustments of the
intangible assets acquired from a business combination. These expenses, except for expenses related to the backlog, are now presented
under the net other operating result. We refer to Note 2 for more information.
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22.7 Payroll expenses

The following table shows the breakdown of payroll expenses for 2018, 2017 and,2016

in 000€

9 0l:15 EST

For the year ended December 3l
2018 2117 2016

0c

64
ESSHTM

e

:ìliirr,iilt¡\r'r r i Ltttlt rli0Nr¡,ri l!l'til, lIilil:, / /ií1til11 ril iíóí(]ì,'t lvj) f'l|l
Social

!tl.¡¡iiNr:Ìf rrlr)rI j 1i],ìrrli11,(tiI t: i(tlt )i(,\,, l"t)i'i¡¡\t ,. 
jìillli ,

11 10

Other

Total registered employees at the end of the period

22.8 Financial expenses

Financial expenses includes the following selected infonnation:

in 000€

l3

2,009 t,862 1,432

For the year ended December 3l
2018 znfl 2016

.¡¡ i,rr il I

F losses

Total

22.9 Financial income

Financial income includes the following selected information:

in 000€

l3l

(4,864) (4,728) (2,437)

For the year ended December 31

2018 2017 2016
lì,rìLfr ltilrjû illiliiÌrlii)tir-ifr /ii{ii.lij ,,li)¡i i .l iiltl(lr ij,:r','

Amortization discount interest free loans 6 t4
, ì) líriiq' fi| ¡r¡ riùt i: i i[ ( ri)) iìi fi' ';rlÌ0r

Total 3,627 3,210 2,039
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22.10 Income taxes and deferred taxes

Current income tax

The following table shows the breakdown of the tax expense for 2018, 2017 and2016

As of December 31.
in 000€ 201 8 2017* 2016

Tax to the 412

Total income taxes for the period (425) (522) (1,710)

The cun ent tax expense is equal to the amount of income tax owed to the tax authorities fol the year, under the applicable tax laws and
rates in effect in the various countries.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is presented in the statement offinancial position under non-current assets and non-current liabilities, as applicable. The
following table shows the breakdown ofthe deferred tax assets, deferred tax liability and the defened tax expense for 2018, 2017 and
2016;

in 000€
Asset/(liability) Income/(expense)

2018 2017* 2016 2018 2017* 201ó

Amortizatìon

Other items

assets and other assets 224 304 227

35
:.:i L: ,.:."' ii .t:;)' rllll; rll)ll iì,i"í Ll ll [;i;rìì, i,i'l,fí))r

i; ;r r:l¡jl):, 'i;).,ji(,il) iflí iiLi,r(¡],; i,.S¡i iìr
&

Investment
i ,,,;,i I 'it(¡r / ï!: llit tr ,ijìft)r,

Other items )

Total deferred tax income Qoss) 1et s96 (12)

The Group has unused tax losses, tax credits and notional interest deduction available in an amount ofK€25,285 for 2018 (2017:
K€l1,948; 2016: K€9,451) of which Ke15,592 for 2018 (2017: K€4,581;2016: K€1,570) relating to Materialise NV. As at
December 31,2018 no unused notional interest deduction remains (2017: K€315; 2016: K€3 15), the amount remaing from previous
periods has expired.
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With respect to the net operating losses of Materialise NV, no deferred tax assets have been recognized given that in view of the
Belgian Patent Incorne Deduction and Innovation Income Deduction there is an unceltainty to which extent these tax losses will be used
in future years. As from July 1,2016, the new Innovation Income Deduction replaces the former Patent Income Deduction. Under the
grandfathering rule the Patent Income Deduction system can still be applied until June 30,2021. The Belgian Patent Income Deduction
allows companies to deduct 80% of the qualiffing gross patent income from the taxable basis. Under the Innovation Income Deduction
system, companies can deduct up to 85% of theit net innovation income from the taxable basis. Based on its analysis, in 2018 the
Company has assessed that no deferred tax asset should be accounted for with respect to its unused tax losses in Belgium.

Vy'ith respect to the net tax losses ofthe other entities in the Group, deferred taxes have been lecognized in 2018 for the amount ofK€26
(2017: K€0;201 6: K€ I 09). The defemed tax liability of K€6,226 in the year ending Deceurber 3 1 , 201 8 rnainly relates to the intangibles
that have been recognized as pafi ofthe purchase price allocation (ACTech).

Relationship between Tax Expense and Accounting ProJit

For the vear ended December 31

in 000€ 201 I 2017* 2n16

20-

Income tax at rate of 29.58o/o t7 2016:3 1,02r) 542 445

Tax to the 80 4t2

initial transaction costs

Notional interest deduction 35r

of deferred tax assets on tax losses 653

Use ofprevious years tax losses and tax credits for which no
deferred tax assets was 12 50

Other
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23 Earnings per share

Basic eatnings pet share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit (loss) for the year attributable to ordinary equiry holders of
the parent company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit (loss) attributable to ordinary equity holder of the parent
company by the weighted avelage number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of oldinary
shares that would be issued on conversion of all warrants.

The net profit (loss) for the year used for the basic and diluted earnings per share are reconciled as follows:

For the year ended December 3l
in 000€ 20t I 2017* 20r6

6*NV D Financi al

,ìÍtr,ll ri;; ; ' 
'r)) ii,iil)¡1:l,lr

Interest on convertible bonds 50

\1.tj illtli,!)j,J l.U i/ tt L
iin, rijilr,:r'iii i¡t i ;rlli1 r¡rÍ j[Ðn,

The convertible bond and the wanants are dilutive as per December 31, 2018 but are anti-dilutive as per December 31,2017 and2016.
We refer to Notes l4 and l5 for information on the number of instruments that could potentially be dilutive but which were not
considered in the calculation above.

The following reflects the share data used in the basic and diluted eamings per share computations:

For the year ended December 3l
in 000 2018 2Dt7 2016

ilii.rt¡ I rl rìtl ù {¡i bÌir i'1r)i i (Dr r li ii ¡ ii, l '"¡,.'tiiLÌfi(rìi ìfrrri'ib.l¡¡¡t;':¡li'r,r)rlJiìrtrirlflJ¡jÌ0ri)i'rl¡trrri(' ,llflrrlillhr ';.1,1.,,i.))iì. ltilt;lrl1,

Effect of dilution:
'l;ill ruri¡'

Convertible loan 421
it1 auril lr rl il i'¡)l'ri

The eamings per share are as follows:

For the year ended December 3l
2018 2017* 201ó

lìrrrl tú[!irfìì]rlqr i.titltilr ,)liìílirili,)0íirrrllìlþ,r¡, ìit,:il\,.tii(r.trt. 'líi liÌ¡ flrl(qlúi
Basic 0.06
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24 Commitments and contingent liabilities

Opera t in g lea s e comtn i ttn e n ts

The Group has operating lease corrnritnrents maiuly related to buildìngs and cars as follows

in 000€

Within one year
Between one aud thlee yeals
Between four and five years
Mot'e than five years

Total

Present
value of

:1 750783 FIN 68 5*

ge

As ofDccernbcr 31,
20t 8 2017 2016

2,053
? ìo?

785
302

5,442

t,721
r,504

406
7'7

3,708

2,0t2
1,964

561

84
4,621

The total lease paynrents recognized in the consolidated inconre statement ale K€2,956 in 2018 (2017: K€2,909;2016: K€2,45 l).

Aparl from orre opelating lease cornrritrrent fol a 3D printer located in Gennany for an arrount of K€554, including the purchase
option, and a total rent commitrnent fol our office in Malaysia for an amourt of K€I,236, including the renewal option, the Group has
no individually significant lease commitments per end of 2018.

Finance lease conntitntenîs

The Gloup has finance leases fol the building and various othel items of plant and equipnrent. Future nrininrurn lease payments under
finance lease with the plesent value of the net minimum lease payments ale as follows:

December 31, 2018 Decenrber 31, 2017 December 31 2016
ùlininru m

payments paynrents

2,876 2,829

Present
value of

Nl inimu m

payments payments

3,034 2,400

I ease

3,398
655
t49

7,078
(26e)

ó,809

3,236
604
140

6,809

6,809

l\linimum
lclse

paymcnts

3,179
5,017
1,361

285

9,842
(678)

9,t64

4,643
1,269

218
9,164

9,164

3,640
t,206

587
7,833
(438)

7,395

Present
valuc of

påyments

2,287
1 50?

1,057
548

7,395

7,395

lca se

in 000€

Within one year
Befween two and thlee yeals
Between four and five years
Mole than five years

Total
Less finance charges
Present value of minimum lease payments

Mortgages and pledges

The Group has several loans secured by a mortgage on the building. The carrying value of related properfy, plant & equipment
(including buildings undet conshuction) is K€30,853 (2017 K€28,526;2016: K€l2,594). The total outstanding moltgages and pledges
ar e K€124,428 in 20 I 8 (20 I 7 : K€85, 1 86; 20 | 6: K€32,362).

Included in the above, the Group also has pledges on the business goodwill ("fonds de commerce") of the Company for a total amount
of K€70,300 in 2018 (2017 K€.29,000; 2016: KC4,491) and pledges on cuüent and other f,ixed assets for a total amount of K€21,142
(2017 : K€9 ,l3l ; 2016: zero).

Other commitments

The Group has outstanding non-cancellable contracts with a ñlhrre commitment of K€6,383 at December 3l ,2018 (2017: K€7,638;
2016: K€.|,290), mainly related to purchase conrmitment for raw materials. For property, plant & equipment, we have no committed
expenditures as per December'31, 2018 (2017:K€672;2016: K€10,204).

-68



ilr r rililrilil r I ililil illlilllJH[il I ilt|il]ilil ]t
19:29 69 6*

FORM zO-F.IFRS XBRL NYM HTM

age

Con tin gent liabi lities

The Group is currently involved ín a legal proceeding with Dentsply lmplants NV regalding the alleged wrongful termination of a
supply agreement between the Company and Dentsply Implants NV entered into in 2010. The court of first instance ruled in favol of
Dentsply Implants NV, that we have wrongfully terminated the relationship. We have appealed this decision before the couft has
pronounced itself on the monetary damages. The amount of danrages which Dentsply Implants NV is claiming is K€2,700. While we
are confìdent that the first instance decision will be ovenuled, we believe that, in the event that the fir'st instance decision would be
confirmed, the amount of monetary damages that we would be exposed to will not have a matedal impact on our business, frnancial
conditions or result of operations. We are currently not a party to, and we are rÌot aware of any thleat of, any other legal ploceedings,
which, irl the opinion of our managenrent, is likely to have ol could reasonably possibly have a rnaterial adverse effect on our business,
financial condition or resnlts ofoperations. As a result lranagelnent concluded that no provision is required.
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25 Risks

The Group is mainly exposed to liquidiry lisk, interest tate risk and credit risk.

Foreign exchauge ri.sk

The Gloup has plimalily exposut'e to the USD, GBP and JPY as foleign cuffency

During 201 8 tlie impact of changes in foleign curency tates on the cash and term accounts held in USD funded thlough the initial
ptrblic offering proceeds was positive fol an arnonnt of K€752.

If the USD (rate t-or I EUR) would have appreciated by I 0%, the net result wonld have been K€ I ,56 I higlrer, excluding the effect of the
cash andterm accottnts held in USD. If theUSD (rate for I EUR) wouldhave depreciatedby l0%, thenetresultwouldhavebeen
K€1,278 lower', excluding the eflect of the cash and term accounts held in USD.

To lirnit the exposure to foreign currency rate fluch:ations on GBP and JPY, the Gloup has entered illto cul'rency rate swaps as of 2017
We lefel to note 20.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk is that the Gror,rp may not have sufficient cash to meet its payment obligations. This risk is conntered by day-by-day
liquidiry lnanagenletlt at the cotporate level. The Group has histolically entered into financing and lease agreements with financial
instittrtions to finance significant projects and celtain working capital requirements. At December 31,2018 the Gror,rp still has undrawn
lines of credit totaling KC26,040, including K€25,000 from the Enropean Investrnent Bank (EIB) as mentioned in the below paragraph
(20 17 : K€4,47 3 ; 20 | 6: K€4,3 5 5).

On September 29,2017 KBC Bank and Materialise agreed on a credit faciliry, mainly related to the financing of the ACTech
acquisition, in which debt covenants were deternrined based on the ratio of the Group's total net financial debt over EBITDA.

On December 20,2017, the European Investment Bank (EIB) and Materialise entered into a finance contract to support Materialise's
ongoing research and development programs for growth from2017 to2020. The contract provides a credit of up to €35.0 million
drawable in two tranches. The first tranche could not exceed €25.0 million and could be drawn during the first year of the contract. The
Group acrually has drawn €10.0 million of this first tranche in the coul'se of 2018. The second tranche can be drawn duLing the second
year of the contract, subject to a specified debt ratio being met. The duration of the loan will be between six to eight years starting from
the disbursement of the respective tr-anches, and includes a fwo-year loan reimbursement grace period. Loans under the contract will be
made at a fixed rate, based on the Euribor late at the time of the borrowing, plus a variable margin. The margin is initially equal to
1.86Yo and. varies in ftrnction of certain EBITDA levels and debt ratios. The contract contains customary secnrity, covenants and
undertakings.
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The range of contracted obligations are as follows:

I 71 6*

HTMESS OC

e

Less than More than
in 000€ 2to3 Total

Loan &
!. l i;l,ií riill:rl,,rll, i llr;.r ili.l:

100 636 70 11

Other cun'ent liabilities
l, . t1...\' ,,i,,. llftt ,]1r,,;ìi/(1, ìtlt;"i11ìrjr

Less than More than
2to3 4-5 l Total

.\a 1L)ilrtt,!ltlirtì/ .{l rÍlJli

Loan & 137

Other cun ent liabilities
I 1it,,l{) r .),,\t i; '.¿.,.)",,t)i\í, ji,,riil)ll 1.'.t,;,.,,\!\l

I,390

Less than More than
2to3 Total

Loan &

Other current liabilities

787 7

634 634
ìlrr[!.iri rLíl),,lll,' ' ! i, tt', il'r).li',)il, '.iN)i.!)iil,
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Interest rate risk

Although the Gloup mainly has loans outstauding rvith a fìxed interest l'ate, sonle of the loans have been contlacted rvith val'iable
intelest rates. The r-nost significant loaus rvith valiable inter-est lates have been secured by means of a valiable to fixed interest rate
swap. We thelefole believe that the Group is not subject to immediate changes in intelest rates. With respect to the interest tate swaps,
we refet to note 20.

Cred¡t r¡sk

Credit lisk is the risk that third parties tnay not rrreet their contractual obligations lesulting in a loss lor the Group. The Group is
exposed to cledit lisk fì'onr its opelating activities þrimalily tlade receivables) and fi'onr its financing activities, which are mainly
deposits with fnancial instilutions. The Gloup limits this exposure by contracting rvith credìt-'"vorthy business pal'tnels ol'with fnancial
instihrtions whicl-r nleet high cledit rating requirenrents. Tn addition, the portfolìo of receivables is rnonitored on a continuons basis.

Trode receiyables and c'onlrocls n progress

Cnstotnet'cledit tisk is managed by each business unit subject to the Gloup's established policy, procedules and coutlols lelating to
custornel. cledit r'ìsk llìanaqetnent.

Art impailment analysis is pelfolnred at eaclr reporting date per colnpany and using a plovisiorr rnatlix pel con'ìpany to nleasul'e
expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for gloupings ofvarious custorner seglrents with sinrilar loss
pattelns (i.e., by legal entity).

The calculation t'eflects the probability-weighted outcorne, the tinre value of money and reasonable and supportable infomation that is
available at the reportìng date about past events, cuffent conditions and folecasts of fuhrre economic condìtions. Genelally, trade
receivables ale written-off if past due for mole than one year and are not subject to enforcernent activiry. The maxiruun exposure to
cledit l'isk at the reporting date is the carrying valne of each class of fìnancial assets disclosed in Note I l. The Group does not hold
col lateral as seculity.

The Group evaluates the concentl'ation of lisk with respect to tlade leceivables as low, as its cnstomels are located in several
jurisdictions and industlies and operate in largely inclependent malkets.

Set out below is the inforrnation about the credit risk exposure on the Gloup's trade receivables using a provision ntatlix:

5*EGV

in 000€

I)ecember 31, 2018
December 31,2017
December 31,2016

Totâl Non-due

36,891
35,582
27,479

26,208
21,630
15,590

Less than
-30 davs

5 ?q5

6,920
6,434

3l-60 days

1,479
1,765
l,885

6t-90 da)'s

931
|,526

490

9l-t 80
days

1,512
t,614
2,008

lllore than
I 8l dâys

1,366
2,121
t,072

Capital management

The prirnary objective of the Group's shareholders' capital management strategy is to ensure it rnaintains healthy capital ratios to
support its business and maximize shareholder value. Capital is defined as the Gloup shareholder''s equity.

The Group consistently reviews its capital stnlcture and nrakes adjustments in light of changing econornic conditions. The Group made
tro changes to its capital management objectives, policies ol processes during the years ended December 31,2018, 2017 and2016.
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26 Related party transactions

The compensation of key management personnel of the Group is as follows:

in 000€

01:16 EST 750783 FIN

age
ESS OC

For the vear ended December 31

20t 8 2017 2016

Post benefits 80 80 ll6

Total l4 70

Watrants outstanding 557,935 573,980 790,752

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognized as an expense duling the reporling period related to key management
personnel (senior management and executive committee members). In the year ending December' 3 1 , 201 8 the compensation to key
management by means of share based payments amounts to K€312.

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant flnancial
year:

Sale of Purchases Interest
in 000€ fronr Receivables Liabilities

2018

2016 72 50 972

2018 123 l0 261

2016 ll7 t6 378

2018

2016 527 601

Related party - Ailanthus NV

Ailanthus NV, shareholder and director of the Group, has provided several loans and financial leases to the Group for the purchase of
machinery and a portion of the office and production buildings. We refer to Note l5 for details.

The Group rent apartments on a regular basis from Ailanthus NV in order to host our employees from foreign subsidiaries who are
visiting our headquarlers in Leuven. The total amount paid to Ailanthus NV for rent in 2018 was K€123 (2017:K€.172;2016: K€l4l).

Related party - Convertible debt

The Group has issued on October 28,2013 I,000 convertible bonds for a total amount of K€1,000. The bonds have been fully
subscribed by a member of our senior management. We refer to Note 15 for more details.
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Fottnder shares

At the inception of the Company, the other shareholders granted a total of 300,000 foundel shares ("oprichtersaandelen") to the foundel'
and CEO of the Group, Mr'. Wilflied Vancraen, in his capacity as shareholder. In accolclance with Belgian Company Law, these founder
shares do not represent shaleholders' capital but grant the holder voting and dividend rights. No other tetms and conditions were
attached to these founder slrales and no dividends has been paid by the Group to tlre shareholdels since inception.

At the General Meeting of Shareholders held on November 28,2013, 300,000 fonnder shares were converted to ordinary A shares.
Converling the fottndel shales into ordinary A shales did not confer any substantial advantage to theil holder but resulted in a dilution
for the existing shareholders by 0% .These ordinary A shares benefìted fi'om all dghts attached to the ot'dinary shales.

Joint ventures

The receivable for- the ar¡ount ofK€I,28I is accounted for under the othel uon-culrent assets and tlade receivables and relates to the
selices and goods delivered to the joint verture RSPRINT. In the course of 2018 the Group also pulchased a 3D plinter from
RSPRINT for the arnount of K€200.
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27 Events subsequent to the statement offinancial position date

On January 10,2019, Materialise NV gtanted a K€2,500 convertible loan to Fluidda NV ("Fluidda"). This investment is part of a
general collaboration, bdnging the possibilities of 3D printing to the pulmonology market, combining Fluidda's Functional Respiratory
Imaging methods with Materialise's expertise in medical engineering. Part of the funds will be used to expand the development of
Functional Respitatory fmaging methods dliven 3D pr:inted devices for personalized monitoring of airflow distribution in lung patients,
using advanced machine learning and artificial intelligence.

There are no other significant events subsequent to the statement of financial position date that rvould require adjustments or disclosures
to the fìnancial statements.
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28 Overvierv of consolidated entities

Name

Materialise NV
Materialise Flance SAS
Materialise GmbH
Materialise Japan K K.
Materialise Czech Republic SRO
Materialise USA, LLC
Materialise UK Limited
OBL SAS
Materialise Austria GrnbH
Materialise Malaysia SDN. Bhd.
Materialise Ukraine LLC
RapidFit NV
RapidFit, LLC (liquidated)
Meridian Technique Lirnited
OrthoView, LLC (liq uidated)
OúhoView Holdings Limited
Meridian (Corporate Trustee) Lir¡ited (liquidated)
OlthoView Limited (liquidated)
Materialise SA
Materialise Colombia SAS
RSPRINT powered by Materialise NV (oint venture)
Materialise Shanghai Co. Ltd
Materialise Australia PTY Ltd
Materialise S.R.L.
ACTech GmbH
ACTech Holding GmbH
ACTech, Inc

EGV mandb0nd 9 18:19 EST

Coutrtry of
in corporation

750783 76
HTM ESS OC

age

6*

7o equity
interest

2018

Belgium
France
Germany
Japan
Czech Republic
United States
United Kingdom
Flance
Austria
Malaysia
Ukraine
Belgiurl
United States
United Kingdonr
United States
United Kingdorn
United Kingdorn
United Kingdom
Poland
Colombia
Belgium
China
Australia
Italy
Germany
Germany
United States

l00Vo
100%
100%
100%
100%
99%

t00%
100%
100%
100%
100%
83%

t00%
100%
50%

100%
l00vo
100%
100%
l00yo
t00%

2t)17

t00%
100%
100%
100%
r00%
99%

100%
\00%
100%
t00%
100%
83%

2016

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
99%

t00%
100%
100%
100%
100%
83%
83%

t00%
l001Yo

t00%
100%
100%
t00%
100%
50%

100%
t00%
100%

100% 100%

r00y, t00%
r00%
100%
100%
100%
50%

t00%
t00%
t00%
100%
100%
100%

The entilies Meterialíse GnbH, Gilching, GermanT', ACTech Holding GnbH, Freiberg / Saxony, Gernany and ACTech GntbH,
Freiberg / Saxony, Gernranv, have taken advantage of the exemption regulatiotts of $ 264 (3) HGB (German Commercial Code) for the

rtnoncial )teat' ending Decenber 3 I , 201 8.
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ITENÍ I6C. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

BDO Bedlijfsrevisolen CVBA was engaged as our independent registeled public accounting fir'm in 2018 and 2017 in
connection r¡'ith our SEC reporting obligations, as well as our statutory auditor for Belgian corl'ìpany and tax law purposes. The
following table sets forrh by categoly of service the total fees for selices provided by BDO Bedrijfsrevisoren CVBA and BDO member
fir'ms to us during 20 I 8 and 201 7.

For the year ended
December 3I

in 000€

Audit Fees

Audit-Related Fees

Tax Fees

AII Other Fees

Total

20t 8 2017

1,121
17

2

543
6l

5

I,140 609

Audit Fees

Audit fees consist ol'the aggregate fees billed in connection with the audit of oul annual consolidated and statrltory financial
statelrellts and internal contlols, the issuance of comfort letters and iuterinr reviews of onl quartetly financial information.

Audit-Related Fees

Audit-related fees are fees for services that are traditionally perforrled by the independent accountants, ìncluding
consultations concerring financial accounting and reporting, and ernployee benefit plan audits, and due diligence on rllerger-s or
acquisitions. The fees also include the attestation ofour cash position and cerlain financial ratios to the EIB.

Tax Fees

Tax fees were paid to BDO Bedrijfsrevisoren CVBA or to BDO member finls. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018

these fees l'elated to the Materialise entity in Malaysia, and for the fiscal year- ended December 3l, 2017 these fees lelated to the

Materialise entities in the United Kingdom and Malaysia

All Other Fees

No other fees were paid to BDO Bedrijfsrevisolen CVBA ol to BDO member firms for the fiscal yeals ended December 31,

2018 and Decerrber 31,2017.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The pre-approval of the Audit Committee or member thereof, to whom pre-approval authority has been delegated, is tequired
for the engagernent ofour independent auditors to render audit or non-audit services. Audit Cor¡rnittee pre-approval ofaudit and

non-andit services will not be required if the engagement for the services is entered into pursttant to pre-approval policies and

procedures established by our audit committee regarding orn'engagement ofthe independent auditors, provided the policies and
procedures are detailed as to the particular service, our audit committee is informed of each service plovided and such policies and

procedures do not include delegation of the Audit Committee's responsibilities nnder the Exchange Act to our management. Audit
Conmittee pre-approval of non-audit services (other than review and attest services) also will lìot be required if such selvices fall
within available exceptions established by the SEC.

All audit fees, audit related fees and tax fees fol the fiscal years ended December 3 1, 20 I 8 and 2017 were pre-approved
under the pre-approval policies of the Audit Committee.
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MATERIALISE NV
Company having made a public appeal to savings

Technologielaan 15

B-3001 Leuven
enterprise number 0441 .l3I .254

RPR/RPM Leuven

(the "Company")

MANAGEMENT REPORT
TO THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

TO BE HELD ON 4 JUNE 2019

Ladies and Gentlemen,

In accordance with the requirements laid down by law and the statutes of the Company, we are
pleased to report to you about the activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group")
for the financial year starting on January l, 2018 and ending on December 31, 2018, and to
present to you both the statutory annual accounts as well as the consolidated annual accounts
as at December 3 1, 201 8. This report has been prepared in accordance with articles 95 and I 19
of the Belgian Companies Code. For additional information, we also refer to our annual report
on Form 20-F which has been filed with the SEC and is available on our website.

I. ANALYSIS OF THE OPERATING RESULTS ON A CONSOLIDATED BASIS

On a consolidated basis, the results of our operations, as derived from our consolidated
annual accounts prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by IASB and adopted by
the European Union, can be summarised as follows:

Comoarison of the Years December 3 l. 2018 and 2017

Year Ended December 31,

20t8 2011* o/o Change

(in thousands oJ€) (n

Revenue 184,721
(82,299)

142,573
(62,9s2)

29.560/r
30.73o/.Cost of sales

Gross profit

Research and development expenses...........
Sales and marketing expenses.
General and administrative expenses...........

Net other operating income (expenses)..

Operating (loss) profit

Financial expenses
Financial income ...
Share in loss ofjoint venture.............
(Loss) profit before taxes.....

Income taxes

102,422

(22,4t6)
(46,303)
(32,3 l0)

3,77 t

79,621

(19,9s9)
(38,93s)
(24,876)

4,541

28.64Vo

12.3ly;
1892%
29.88%

-16.96%
5,164

(4,864)
3,627
(47s)

392

3,452

(42s)

(1,s9s)

(s22)

t2t1.35yo

2.88Yo
12.99Vo

t.28yo

-18.58%

(4,728)
3,210
(46e)

Net (loss) profit for the year............ 3,027 (2,111)

* The year 2017 has been restated to reflect certain reclassification adjustments and the final accounting of the business combination with
ACTech Holding GmbH, ACTech GmbH and ACTech North America [nc., referred to collectively as ACTech See Note 2 to our audited
consolidated financial statements in Form 20-F for more information.

1

/



Materialise
Software

37,374
I 1,536

30.9yo

Materialise
Medical

Materialise
Manufacturing

Total
Segments Unallocated(r) Consolidated

For the year ended December 31, 2018
Revenues
Segment EBITDA
Segment EBTTDA %....................... . . .. .

For the year ended Decembel 31,2017
Revenues
Segment EBITDA*

\)')\)
10,252

19.6%

(in thousands of€, except percenlages)

94,9s6 184,s82
I 0,785
11.4yo

32,573
17 6%

63,712
4,439
7.00/o

t39
(10,t22)

t84,721
22,451
12.2%

35,770
13,926
38.9y"

42,84t
4,400

10.3o/"

r42,323
22,765
l6.jYo

250
(9,797)

142,573
12,968

9.lo/oSegment EBITDA %

(1) Unallocated related Revenues consist ofoccasional one-offsales by our core competencies not allocated to any ofour segments.
Unallocated related Segment EBITDA consist of corporate research and development, corporate headquarter costs and other operating
income (expense).

* The year 2017 has been restated to reflect certain reclassification adjustments and the final accounting ofthe business combination with
ACTech Holding GmbH, ACTech CmbH and ACTech North America Inc., refened to collectively as ACTech. See Note 2 to our audited
consolidated financial statements in Form 20-F for more information.

Analvsis

Revenue. Revenue was €184.7 million in the year ended December 31,2018 compared
to €142.6 million in the year ended December 31,2017, an increase of €42.I million,
or 29.6 o/o.

Revenue from our Materialise Software segment increased from €35.8 million in the
year ended December 31,2017 fo €37 .4 million in the year ended December 31,2018,
which represented an increase of €1.6 million, or 4.5yo. Recurrent revenue, consisting
of limited license fees and maintenance fees, grew 18.0%. Non-recuffent revenue,
mainly consisting of perpetual fees, decreased 4.6%. Deferred revenue from license and
maintenance fees increased to €2.8 million, compared to €1.3 million in the year ended
December 3I,2017.

Revenue from our Materialise Medical segment increased from €42.8 million in the
year ended December 31,2017 to €52.3 million in the year ended December 3I,20I8,
representing an increase of €9.4 million, ot 22.0%. Within our medical software
department recurrent revenue from annual and renewed licenses and maintenance fees
increased by 17 .lYo, reflecting the implementation of our strategy focused on products
with def,rned contractual periods. Our revenue from perpetual licenses and services
decreased by 8.4%. These recunent revenues represented 73.7% of all medical software
revenues in the year ended December 3I,2018, comparedto 68.7Yo in the year ended
December 31,2017. Revenues from medical devices and services grew 29.3% in the
year ended December 3I, 2018, due to the revenue increase from partner sales,
especially in our CMF, shoulder and knee devices business lines.

Revenue from our Materialise Manufacturing segment increased from €,63.7 million in
the year ended December 3I,2017 to €95.0 million inthe year ended December 31,
2018, representing an increase of €31.2 million, or 49.Io/o. Revenue from the ACTech
business contributed €,43.4 million in 2018. As of December 3I, 2018, Materialise

2
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Manufacturing operated 149 3D printers, six vacuum casting machines and 19 CNC
machines, as compared to 155, six and 16 as of December 31,2017, respectively. The
decrease in 3D printers was mainly due to hve powder binding machines no longer
being used for consumer printing commercial purposes. Four metal 3D printers were
added, while five older plastic 3D printers were put out of operation during the year
ended December 3 1, 201 8.

As a result of the ACTech acquisition, our revenue was distributed differently in 2018
than in 2017. During the year ended December 31,2018, and across our various
segments, 29.5% of our revenue was derived from Materialise Software and Materialise
Medical software licenses and related services, as comparedto 36.1%o in the year ended
December 3I,2017. Furthermore,5L4Yo of our revenues was derived from the sale of
printed industrial and consumer products (including €43.4 million from ACTech's
business), compared to 44.7Vo in the year ended December 31,2017 and 19.l%o of our
revenues was derived from the sale of medical devices (guides as well as implants). ).
These medical devices were brought to the market together with complex software
planning solutions, had corresponding royalties and other fees, and contributed to the
total revenue at the same level as compared to the year ended December 3I,2017.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales was €82.3 million in the year ended December31,20l8
compared to €63.0 million in the year ended December 31,2017, an increase of €19.3
million, or 30.6Vo. This increase in cost of sales was primarily attributable to increased
purchases of goods and services and payroll expenses and a full year of depreciation
expenses from the acquired ACTech business. Cost of sales of the ACTech business
contributed €28.7 million in 2018.

Gross profil. The overall gross profit margin (our gross profit divided by our revenue)
decreased to 55.4Vo in the year ended December 31,2018 from 55.8% in the year ended
December 31,2017.

Research and development, or R&D, sales and marketing, or S&M, and general and
administrative, or G&A, expenses. R&D, S&M and G&A expenses increased, in the
aggregate, to €101.0 million for the year ended December 31,2018 from €83.8 million
in the year ended December 31,2017. R&D expenses (excluding ACTech business)
increased from €20.0 million to €22.4 million, S&M expenses increased from €38.9
million to €46.3 million (including €3.2 million from ACTech), and G&A expenses
increased from€24.9 million to €32.3 million (including €6.0 million from ACTech).

Net other operating income. Net other operating income decreased from €4.5 million
in the year ended December 31,2017 to €3.8 million in the year ended December 31,
2018. This decrease in other operating income was primarily increase of the provision
for doubtful receivables, including the impact of the new IFRS 9 accounting standard.

Financiql result (financial expenses and financial income). The net financial result
increased from €(1.5) million in the year ended December 31,2017 to €(1.2) million in
the year ended December 31,2018. This variance was due to an increase of net interest
expense, offset by positive variances related to foreign currency results and net other
financial income.
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Income taxes .Income taxes in the year ended December 3 I , 20 1 8 resulted in an expense
of €0.4 million, which was a combination of deferred tax bookings, and income taxes
due over the result for the period.

Net profit. As a result of the factors described above, the net profit was €3.0 million in
the year ended December 31,2018 compared to a net loss of €2.1 million in the year
ended December 31,2017, or an increase of €5.1 million.

EBITDA. As a result of the factors described above, our consolidated EBITDA
increased from €13.0 million in the year ended December 3I,2017 to €22.5 million in
the year ended December 31,2018, an increase of €7.5 million, or 73.1 Yo, and our total
segment EBITDA increased from€22.8 million in the year ended December 3I,2017
to €32.6 million in the year ended December 31, 2018, an increase of €9.8 million, or
43.1%. The 2018 EBITDA includes the ACTech business's contribution of €9.4 million.

Our Materialise Software segment's EBITDA decreased from €13.9 million in the year
ended December 31,2017 to €11.5 million in the year ended December 31,2018, a

decrease of €2.4 million, or 17.3%o. This segment's EBITDA margin (the segment's
EBITDA divided by the segment's revenue) decreased from 38.9% for the year ended
December 31,2017 to 30.9Yo in the year ended December 31,2018. The decrease in
the EBITDA margin was due to a moderate revenue growth of 4.5Yo (which was
affected negatively from a sales mix with a higher portion of recurrent sales and
deferred revenue), offset by an increase in operating expenses by I8.3Yo, reflecting
continued investments in R&D and S&M, and increased G&A expenses.

Our Materialise Medical segment's EBITDA increased from €4.4 million in the year
ended December 3I,2017 to €10.3 million in the year ended December 31,2018. The
segment's EBITDA margin increased froml0.3o/o inthe year ended December 31,2017
to l9.6Yo in the year ended December 31,2018, which was mainly the result of an
increase of the segment's gross marginby 28.6%o partially offset by an increase of 6.lYo
across the segment's operational expenses.

Our Materialise Manufacturing segment's EBITDA increased lrom€4.4 million in the
year ended December 31,2017 to €10.8 million in the year ended December 31,2018.
Excluding ACTech's contributionof €9.4 million, the EBITDA margin of this segment
decreased from 5.4%o in the year ended December 31,2017 to 2.7Yo in the year ended
December 31,2018.
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2. ANALYSIS OF THE OPERATING RESULTS AT THE LEVEL OF THE
COMPANY

At the level of the Company, the results of our operations, as derived from our statutory
annual accounts prepared in accordance with Belgian GAAP, can be summarized as

follows:

Comoarison of the Years December 31. 2018 and20l7

Year Ended December 31,

20r8 2017 7o Change

(in thousands of€) (n

Operating income... .....
Operating charges.....
Operating profit (loss)

Financial income
Financial charges

Gain (loss) on ordinary activities before taxes .

Trans fer lrom de lerred ta,\es..................

Ta,res on result

Net profit.........

130,212
137,862

128,561
t37,727

r.28
0.10

5,5 87

12,812

-7,650 -9,166

2,758
5 76q

r02.57
122.08

-14,875

2

-12,179

2

126

-14,641 -12,302 19.01

Analysis

The operations of the Company are in line with the operations of the Group. Reference
is made to Section 1 in this respect.

The operating loss in 2018 amounted to €7.6 million as compared to €9.2 million in
2017 . The depreciation of activated development expenses increased with €l .5 million
to €17.4 million from €16.0 million. The operating result in 2018 also includes
consulting cost of €1.1 million related to capital increases of July 2018. These elements
were fully offset by an improvement of our operations.

Financial charges for 2018 include an impairment of €7.0 million on our investment in
Rapidfit NV and €2.5 million bank cost related to capital increases of July 2018.

Although we have losses for the third consecutive year, we see no reason to change our
valuation rules in the company that have been based upon going concern. Such
presumption is justified on the basis of the Company's equity position that increased to
€128.6 million end 2018 from €82.7 million end2017, and cash and cash equivalents
that increased €65.0 million to €95.3 million at end 2018 from €30.3 million.

APPROPRIATION OF PROFITS

The period which has expired concluded with a net loss of €14,641,548

Together with the carried forward profit of the previous financial year (€3,184,372),the
total amount to be appropriated amounts to €17,825,920 which we recommend to carry
forward in its entirety.

-232
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3. STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP

On December 31, 2018, we had 22 (direct and indirect) subsidiaries (in Belgium (2),
France (2), England (3), Germany (3), Czech Republic, Austria, Poland, the United
States (2), Columbia, Japan, Malaysia, China, Italy, Australia and Ukraine).

We owned I00% of the shares of Mobelife NV. On December 5,2016, after a transfer
of all assets of Mobelife NV to the Company, Mobelife NV was dissolved and ceased
to exist. The business of Mobelife NV has been fully integrated in and is continued by
our Materialise Medical segment.

On December 31, 2016, we decided to transfer all the assets and activities of RapidFit,
LLC, a subsidiary of RapidFit NV.

With regard to the 50/50 joint-venture company RS Print NV, Materialise NV has a
participation of €2.0 million fully paid up as per end 2018. This participation is fully
impaired.

On June 29 , 2016 and November 7 , 201 6 respectively, CENAT BVBA and Elbimmo
NV were merged into the Company as well as Materialise Metal BVBA was liquidated
on 5 December 2016.

On October 4, 2017, we acquired ACTech, a full- service manufacturer of complex
metal parts based in Germany, based on a total enterprise value of €43.7 million for a
total cash payment of €29.4 million.

On November 6, 2017, we dissolved RapidFit LLC and on November 13, 2017, we
dissolved Orthoview LLC, a subsidiary of OrthoView Holdings Limited.

In December 2018, we filed for dissolution of Meridian Corporate Trustees Limited
and Orthoview Limited, subsidiaries of Orthoview Holdings Limited.

On July 18, 2018, we and BASF New Business GmbH, or BASF New Business, a

subsidiary of BASF SE, the German chemical conglomerate (FWB: BAS), entered into
a Strategic Alliance Partnership Agreement. The Strategic Alliance Partnership
Agreement establishes a framework for collaboration to leverage the parties' existing
strengths and expertise to develop new materials for the 3D printing industry.

In connection with the entry into the Strategic Alliance Partnership Agreement, we and
BASF Antwerpen NV, or BASF Antwerpen, a subsidiary of BASF SE, entered into a
Subscription Agreement pursuant to which BASF Antwerpen subscribed for I,953,125
of our newly issued ordinary shares in a private placement, for an aggregate
subscription price of approximately $25 million. The ordinary shares subscribed for
were delivered to BASF Antwerpen on July 19,2018.

On July 27,2018, we sold 3,450,000 ADSs in a follow-on public offering at a public
offering price of $13.00 per ADS, and received net proceeds of approximately $40.2
million.
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4. MATERIAL EVENTS SINCE THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Apart from what is mentioned below, there are no material events since the end of the
financial year.

On January 10,2019, Materialise NV granted a€2.5 million convertible loan to Fluidda
NV ("Fluidda"). This investment is part of a general collaboration, bringing the
possibilities of 3D printing to the pulmonology market, combining Fluidda's Functional
Respiratory Imaging methods with Materialise's expertise in medical engineering. Part
of the funds will be used to expand the development of Functional Respiratory Imaging
methods driven 3D printed devices for personalized monitoring of airflow distribution
in lung patients, using advanced machine learning and artificial intelligence.

5. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The risks and uncertainties, with which both the Group and the Company are faced, can
be summarized as follows. However, other than those risks and uncertainties, we are
not aware of any circumstances that are likely to have a material influence on the
development of the Company.

We may not be able to maintain or increase the market share or reputation of
our software and other products and services that they need to remain or become
a market standard.

We may not be successful in continuing to enhance and adapt our software,
products and services in line with developments in market technologies and
dcmands.

The research and development programs that we are currently engaged in, or
that we may establish in the future, may not be successful and our significant
investments in these programs may be lost.

Existing and increased competition may reduce our revenue and profits.

V/e rely on collaborations with users of our additive manufacturing solutions to
be present in certain large scale markets and, indirectly, to expand into
potentially high-growth specialty markets. Our inability to continue to develop
or maintain these relationships in the future could harm our ability to remain
competitive in existing markets and expand into other markets.

Our revenue and results of operations may fluctuate.

Demand for additive manufacturing generally and our additive manufacturing
software solutions, products and services in particular may not increase
adequately.

We are dependent upon sales to certain industries.
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If our relationships with suppliers, including with limited source suppliers of
consumables, were to terminate or our manufacturing arrangements were to be
disrupted, our business could be adversely affected.

We depend on the knowledge and skills of our senior management and other
key personnel, and if we are unable to retain and motivate them or recruit
additional qualified personnel, our operations could suffer.

We may need to raise additional capital from time to time in order to meet our
growth strategy and may be unable to do so on attractive terms, or at all.

Our international operations subject us to various risks, and our failure to
manage these risks could adversely affect our results of operations.

Our international operations pose currency risks, which may adversely affect
our results of operations and net income.

Changes in tax laws, treaties or regulations could adversely affect our financial
results.

We may engage in acquisitions or investments that could disrupt our business,
cause dilution to our shareholders and harm our financial condition and results
of operations.

We may enter into collaborations, in-licensing arrangements, joint ventures,
strategic alliances or partnerships with third parties that may not result in the
development of commercially viable products or the generation of significant
future revenue.

Failure to comply with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or other
applicable anti-comrption legislation could result in fines, criminal penalties
and an adverse effect on our business.

Errors or defects in our software or other products could cause us to incur
additional costs, lose revenue and business opportunities, damage our reputation
and expose us to potential liability.

We rely on our information technology systems to manage numerous aspects of
our business and customer and supplier relationships, and a disruption of these
systems could adversely affect our results of operations.

A breach of security in our products or computer systems may compromise the
integrity of our products, harm our reputation, create additional liability and
adversely impact our financial results.

We rely on third party technology, platform, carriers, server and hardware
providers, anda failure ofservice by these providers could adversely affect our
business and reputation.

Worþlace accidents or environmental damage could result in substantial
remedial obligations and damage to our reputation.
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Our operations are subject to environmental laws and other government
regulations that could result in liabilities in the future.

If our service center operations are disrupted, sales of our 3D printing services,
including the medical devices that we print, may be affected, which could have
an adverse effect on our results ofoperations.

V/e could experience unforeseen difficulties in building and operating key
portions of our 3D printing infrastructure.

We may not have adequate insurance for potential liabilities, including
liabilities arising from litigation.

Current and future global economic uncertainties and political conditions may
adversely affect our results ofoperations.

V/e face potential liability related to the privacy and security of personal
information we collect.

Our medical business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows
could be significantly and negatively affected by substantial government
regulations.

Modif,rcations to our medical products marketed in the United States may
require new 510(k) clearances or premarket approvals, or may require us to
cease marketing or recall the modified products until clearances are obtained.

Healthcare policy changes, including legislation to reform the U.S. healthcare
system and legislation to reform the EU medical Device legislation, could
adversely affect us.

Our financial performance may be adversely affected by medical device tax
provisions in the health care reform laws.

The use, including the misuse or off-label use, of our medical services and
products may be deemed unauthorized use or improper promotion, which could
harm our image in the marketplace or result in injuries that lead to product
liability suits and could be costly to our business or result in regulatory
sanctions.

If our marketed medical devices are defective or otherwise pose safety risks, the
relevant govenìmental authorities could require their recall, or we may initiate
a recall of our products voluntarily.

If our products cause or contribute to a death or a serious injury, or malfunction
in certain ways, we will be subject to medical device reporting regulations,
which can result in voluntary corrective actions or agency enforcement actions.

Our Materialise Medical segment's 3D printing operations are required to
operate within a quality management system that is compliant with the
regulations of various jurisdictions, including the requirements of ISO 13485,
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and the U.S. Quality System Regulation, which is costly and could subject us to
enforcement action.

We may be subject to or otherwise affected by U.S. federal and state, European
or other healthcare laws, including fraud and abuse and health information
privacy and security laws, and could face substantial penalties if we are unable
to fully comply with such laws.

If we are unable to obtain patent protection for our products or otherwise protect
our intellectual property rights, our business could suffer.

We may not be able to protect our trade secrets and intellectual property

W'e may incur substantial costs enforcing or acquiring intellectual property
rights and defending against third-party claims as a result of litigation or other
proceedings.

Obtaining and maintaining our patent protection depends on compliance with
various procedural, documentary, fee payment and other requirements imposed
by governmental patent agencies, and our patent protection could be reduced or
eliminated for non-compliance with these requirements.

We may be subject to claims that our employees have wrongfully used or
disclosed alleged trade secrets of their former employers.

If disputes arise, we could lose rights that are important to our business or be
subject to restrictions on the conduct ofour business.

Certain technologies and patents have been developed with collaboration
partners and we may face restrictions on this jointly developed intellectual
property.

Our use of open source software may expose us to additional risks and harm our
intellectual property.

The implementation of the recent reform of the Belgian Companies Code that
will enter into force on May 01,2019, may adversely affectthe rights of our
shareholders.

6. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

We have an ongoing research and development program to improve and expand the
capabilities of our existing technology portfolio, which reflects our continued
investments in a range of disciplines, including software development, industrial,
mechanical and biomedical engineering, physics and chemistry.

We have a long history of research and development through collaborations, which
augment our internal development efforts. Our earliest joint research projects date from
the early 1990s with market leading collaboration partners such as Siemens AG,Zeneca
and the University of Leuven (Katholieke Universiteit Leuven), or KU Leuven. Many

/
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of our innovations are based on industrial collaborations such as those with Phonak
Staefa Switzerland and Zimmer Biomet.

As of December 2018, we were active in 33 government funded research projects. With
our platform technologies and strong track record in successful commercialization of
scientific innovations, we receive many requests for participation in new development
projects. V/hile we strongly protect our intellectual property in our core competencies,
many of our products require collaborations in order to create healthy ecosystems for
their successful implementation.

As of December 31,2018, we had approximately 80 active research and development
projects in various stages of completion and approximately 370 FTEs and fully
dedicated consultants working on research and development in our facilities in
Belgium, France, Germany, Poland, the United Kingdom, Ukraine, China and
Malaysia.

For the year ended December 31,2018, our research and development expenses were
€22.4 million, or l2.l%o of our revenue (15.9% excluding ACTech), as compared to
e20.0 million, or I4.0o/o (15.1% excluding ACTech) of our revenue in20l7.

In addition, our strategic partnership with BASF New Business focuses on
collaboration for research and development activities in multiple areas including: (i)
materials supply and development, (ii) application development, (iii) research and
development in new technology fields, (iv) interchange of expertise and know-how in
additive manufacturing production in the helds of 3D printing processes, and (v) pursuit
of new business development opportunities in the field of additive manufacturing in
various industries.

We also regularly apply for research and development grants and subsidies under
European, Belgian, British, French, German, Polish and Czech grant rules. The
majority of these grants and subsidies are non-refundable. We have received grants and
subsidies from different authorities, including the Flemish government (VLAIO, or
Vlaams Agentschap Innoveren en Ondernemen, the former IV/T) and the European
Union (FP7 and H2020 framework programs).

We expect to continue to invest significantly in research and development in the future.

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company has used interest rate and foreign cunency swaps as financial instruments
in the course of the hnancial period.

8. MISCELLEANOUS

8.1 Exceptional tasks performed by the auditor

On top of the annual audit fees amounting to 347 ,287 EUR, we also paid €477 ,546 as

fees to the statutory auditor for other control services, including issuance of comfort
letter other services in relation to the public and private placement of 2018, as well as
legal engagements and attestation reports in the year ended December, 31, 2018.

8.2 Conflicts of interest
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Not applicable

8.3 Use of authorised capital

8.4 Acquisition or disposal of own shares

Not applicable

9. DISCHARGE

By resolution of the extraordinary shareholders' meeting of April 23, 2014, which
entered into force on June 30,2014, our shareholders authorized the board ofdirectors,
for a period of hve years from August 18,2014,to increase the Company's share capital,
in one or more transactions, up to a maximum amount of €2,714,634.83 (the so-called
authorised capital).

On July 18, 2018, the Board of Directors of the company decided to increase the
company's registered capital within the framework of the authorized capital, which on
July 26,2018 was fixed at an amount for the capital increase of one hundred and
seventy-three thousand and nine euros and nineteen cents (173,009.19 EUR), which
resulted in a decrease in the available amount of the authorized capital to two million
four hundred and fifty-six thousand two hundred and sixty-thirds euros and fourteen
cents (2,45 6,261.14 EUR).

On July 19, 2018, the Board of Directors of the company decided to increase the
company's registered capital within the framework of the authorized capital for an
amount of one hundred and twelve thousand six hundred and thirty-six euros twenty
cents (EUR 112,636.20), ich resulted in a decrease in the available amount of the
authorized capital to two million three hundred and forty-three thousand six hundred
and twenty-four euros and ninety-four cents (2,343,624.94 EUR).

On July 18,2018, the Board of Directors of the company decided to increase the
company's registered capital within the framework of the authorized capital, which on
July 27 ,2018 was f,rxed at an amount for the capital increase of twenty-five thousand
nine hundred and tifty{hree euros and thirty-eight cents (25,95I.38 EUR), which
resulted in a decrease in the available amount of the authorized capital to two million
three hundred and seventeen thousand six hundred and seventy-three euros and fifty-
six cents (2,317,673.56 EUR).

We propose that the directors and auditors are formally discharged for the performance
of their mandates during the financial period which has just expired.

I2

(



Done in Leuven on April 29,2019

Peter Leys

Chairman

Wilfried Vancraen

Director
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Free translation

Statutory auditor’s report to the general meeting of

Materialise NV on the consolidated financial statements for the

year ended December 31, 2018

In the context of the statutory audit of the consolidated financial statements of

Materialise NV (the Company) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as 'the Group'), we

hereby present our statutory auditor’s report. It includes our report on the audit of the

consolidated financial statements as well as our report on the other legal and regulatory

requirements. These reports form part of an integrated whole and are indivisible.

We have been appointed as statutory auditor by the general meeting of June 7, 2016,

following the proposal formulated by the board of directors per recommendation of the audit

committee. Our statutory auditor’s mandate expires on the date of the General Meeting

deliberating on the consolidated financial statements closed on December 31, 2018. We have

performed the statutory audit of the consolidated financial statements of Materialise NV for

six consecutive years.

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Unqualified opinion

We have performed the statutory audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements,

which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018,

and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income , the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of

cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and

which is characterized by a consolidated statement of financial position total of 313.225 kEUR

and for which the consolidated income statement shows a profit for the year of 3.027 kEUR.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the Group’s

net equity and financial position as at December 31, 2018, as well as of its consolidated

financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance

with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and

with the legal and regulatory requirements applicable in Belgium.

Basis for unqualified opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA) as

applicable in Belgium. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the

'Statutory auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements'

section in this report. We have complied with all the ethical requirements that are relevant

to the audit of consolidated financial statements in Belgium, including those concerning

independence.



Free translation

MATERIALISE NV:

Statutory auditor’s report to the general meeting of the company

on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

2.

We have obtained from the board of directors and company officials the explanations and

information necessary for performing our audit.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our opinion.

Other statements

The consolidated financial statements, which are the basis of this audit report, are drawn up

in English as the Dutch version is not yet available at the moment of this audit report. The

Company will draw up a Dutch translation of the consolidated financial statements, to comply

with the Belgian language legislation, and subsequently publish these with our Dutch audit

report, which we issue today. We will verify at that moment whether the Dutch version of the

consolidated financial statements corresponds with the English version, on which we issue our

audit report today.

Responsibilities of the board of directors for the consolidated financial statements

The board of directors is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements

that give a true and fair view in accordance with the International Financial Reporting

Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and with the legal and regulatory

provisions applicable in Belgium, and for such internal control as the board of directors

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the board of directors is responsible for

assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters

related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the board of

directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Statutory auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial

statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

and to issue a statutory auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a

high level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with

ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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3.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive

to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control;

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the board of directors;

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the board of directors’s use of the going concern basis

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability

to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are

required to draw attention in our statutory auditor’s report to the related disclosures in

the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

statutory auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern;

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial

statements and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation;

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the

entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated

financial statements. We are responsible for the management, the supervision and the

performance of the Group audit. We assume full responsibility for the auditor’s opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit.

Statutory auditor’s report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Responsibilities of the board of directors

The board of directors is responsible for the preparation and the content of the management

report on the consolidated financial statements.

Responsibilities of the statutory auditor

In the context of our mandate and in accordance with the Belgian standard (revised in 2018)

that is supplementary to the International Standards on Auditing (ISA) as applicable in

Belgium, it is our responsibility to verify, in all material aspects, the management report on

the consolidated financial statements as well as to report on this element.
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Statutory auditor’s report to the general meeting of the company

on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 4.

Aspects relating to the management report on the consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, after having performed specific procedures in relation to the management

report, the management report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements for

the same financial year, and it is prepared in accordance with article 119 of the Company

Code.

In the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we are also responsible

for considering, in particular based on the knowledge we have obtained during the audit,

whether the management report on the consolidated financial statements contains any

material misstatements, i.e. any information which is inadequately disclosed or otherwise

misleading. Based on the procedures we have performed, there are no material

misstatements we have to report to you.

We do not express any form of assurance whatsoever on the management report on the

consolidated financial statements.

Statement concerning independence

• Our audit firm and our network did not provide services which are incompatible with the

statutory audit of the consolidated financial statements and our audit firm remained

independent of the Group during the terms of our mandate.

• The fees related to additional services which are compatible with the statutory audit as

referred to in article 134 of the Company Code were duly itemised and valued in the notes

to the consolidated financial statements.

Zaventem, April 29, 2019

BDO Réviseurs d’Entreprises SCRL

Statutory auditor

Represented by Veerle Catry
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